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In this Annual Report, we have disclosed 

forward-looking information to enable 

investors to comprehend our prospects and 

take informed investment decisions. This 

report and other statements - written and oral 

- that we periodically make, contain forward-

looking statements that set out anticipated 

results based on the management’s plans and 

assumptions. We have tried wherever possible 

to identify such statements by using words such 

as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, 

‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar 

substance in connection with any discussion 

of future performance. We cannot guarantee 

that these forward-looking statements will be 

realised, although we believe we have been 

prudent in our assumptions. The achievement 

of results is subject to risks, uncertainties and 

even inaccurate assumptions. Should known 

or unknown risks or uncertainties materialise, 

or should underlying assumptions prove 

inaccurate, actual results could vary materially 

from those anticipated, estimated or projected. 

Readers should bear this in mind. We undertake 

no obligation to publicly update any forward-

looking statements, whether as a result of new 

information, future events or otherwise.
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Directors‘ Report

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting Nineteenth Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Balance 

Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 and the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The highlights of the financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 as compared to 

the previous financial year are as under:-

(H in Lakhs)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23*

Total Income 1,03,723.98 1,07,408.84

Profit/(Loss) before Interest, Depreciation and Tax and exceptional items 17,485.61 18,826.44

Finance Cost 219.21 89.67

Depreciation and Amortization Expenditure 6,205.80 5,402.39

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and Tax 11,060.60 13,334.38

Exceptional Items - -

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 11,060.60 13,334.38

Provision for taxation:

-Current Tax 1,937.79 2,324.56

- Income tax for earlier years (12.15) 13.09

-Deferred Tax 442.46 2,404.33

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 8,692.50 8,592.40

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (5.25) 2.81

Total comprehensive income for the year 8,687.25 8,595.21

*Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and/or rearranged wherever necessary as per the order passed by the Hon’ble National 

Company Law Tribunal, Guwahati Bench dated 10th May, 2024 in respect of the Scheme of amalgamation between M/s Meghalaya Power 

Limited, M/s Megha Technical & Engineers Private Limited & M/s NE Hills Hydro Limited with your Company with effect from 1st April, 2023.

INDIAN ECONOMY – A RETROSPECT AND OUTLOOK
Indeed, India’s economic landscape is multifaceted, 

encompassing agriculture, manufacturing, and service 

sector. Agriculture remains crucial sector for the country 

and providing livelihoods for a significant portion of the 

population. However, challenges such as low productivity 

and inadequate infrastructure persist, exacerbated by 

climatic uncertainties.

On the manufacturing front, India showcases a diverse 

range of industries, spanning from traditional village-

based enterprises to modern sectors like pharmaceuticals, 

automobiles, and textiles. This diversity reflects country’s 

rich cultural heritage and its adaptability to global market 

demands.

The service sector, particularly IT and financial services, has 

emerged as a powerhouse, driving economic growth and 

contributing substantially to the GDP. 

The Government of India has continued its emphasis on 

infrastructure spending as a means to generate economic 

growth, create jobs, and stimulate private consumption and 

investment. In the Interim Budget for FY 2024-25, H11.11 lakh 

crore has been allocated for infrastructure development. 

Additionally, the budget targets significant housing projects 

like:

•	 PM Awas Yojana Gramin: Building two crore houses in 

rural areas over the next five years.

•	 Middle-Class Housing Scheme: Proposing a new scheme 

to address the housing needs of India’s vast middle-class 

population.

The Budgetary support to capital expenditures, support 

for the manufacturing and agricultural sectors, focus on 

improving regional connectivity through airports and 

railways and easing of various compliances will be key 

governing factors for inclusive growth of the country in the 

period to come. 

Despite these initiatives, India’s economy also grapples with 

Dear Members,
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various issues, including income inequality, bureaucratic 

red tape, infrastructure deficiencies and unstable weather 

condition. Addressing these challenges will be crucial for 

sustaining growth and fostering inclusive development in the 

years ahead. Russian Ukraine war, rising tension in middle-

east and other political unrest may adversely affect world 

economy. However country’s business-friendly reform 

agenda, strong population growth and increased interest 

from foreign companies to invest in India will contribute 

for the further infrastructure development of the country as 

well as the cement industry.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
During the year under review your Company produced 

20,44,837 MT of Cement Clinker as against 19,62,393 MT in 

the previous year. There has been sharp rise in performance 

of your Company. On the capacity utilization front, your 

Company was able to fully utilized its installed capacity 

during the FY 2023-24.

During the year your Company has sold 20,52,680 MT. 

of clinker against 19,64,597 MT. recorded in last year and 

the Company has exported NIL as against NIL of Cement 

Clinker to neighboring country in the last year. There has 

been sharp rise in overall performance of your Company.

During the FY 2023-24, your Company has posted EBIDTA of 

H17,485.61 lakhs and profit after tax amounting to H8,692.50 

lakhs. Your Company expects to increase the operational 

efficiencies in years to come.

During the year under review your Holding Company M/s. 

Star Cement Limited continued various marketing initiatives 

in order to make the brand “Star Cement” more visible and 

attain top of mind recall. 

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
In respect of the Scheme of Amalgamation filed before the 

Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Guwahati bench, 

M/s. Meghalaya Power Limited, M/s Megha Technical & 

Engineers Private Limited and M/s NE Hills Hydro Limited 

(Transferor Companies) have been merged with the 

Company (Transferee Company) as per order passed by 

the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Guwahati 

Bench dated 10th May, 2024. The Scheme of Amalgamation 

has been effective on 20th May, 2024 with effect from the 

appointed date i.e. 01st April, 2023. 

In terms of the approved Scheme of Amalgamation, all the 

property, rights, powers, investments, claims, authorities, 

allotments, approvals, consents, licenses, permissions, 

registration, contracts, concessions, engagements, 

arrangements, estates, interests, intellectual property 

rights, accruals rights and titles, benefits and advantages, if 

any, of whatsoever nature and wherever situated of every 

description belonging to or in the ownership, power or 

possession and in the control of or vested in or granted 

in favor of or enjoyed by Transferor Companies including 

debts, liabilities, duties and obligations. etc., inter alia of 

the Transferor Companies have been transferred to the 

Company with effect from the Appointed Date being 01st 

April, 2023.

DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors of your company, after considering 

holistically the relevant circumstances has decided that it 

would be prudent, not to recommend any Final Dividend for 

the Financial Year 2023-24 (Previous year NIL).

SHARE CAPITAL
The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2024 was 

H3,806.92 lakhs (including pending allotment of 1,19,80,569 

shares to Parent Company pursuant to the approved 

scheme of amalgamation). During the year under review, 

the Company has neither issued any shares with differential 

voting rights nor granted stock options or sweat equity 

shares.

ANNUAL RETURN 
Pursuant to Provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) 

read with Rule 11 & 12 of the Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended from time 

to time, the requirement to attach the Extract of Annual 

Return has been omitted vide Companies (Management 

and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2021. Since the 

company does not possess any website thus, it is not 

required to upload the Annual Return on the website and 

to provide web link thereof on the Board’s Report. Further, 

a copy of the Annual Return for the Financial Year 2023-24, 

shall be filed with the ROC. 

CHANGES IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There has not been any change in the nature of business. 

However, in terms of order of the Hon’ble National 

Company Law Tribunal, Guwahati bench, dated 10th May, 

2024, M/s. Meghalaya Power Limited, M/s.. Megha Technical 

& Engineers Private Limited and M/s. NE Hills Hydro Limited 

have been amalgamated with the Company with effect 

from 1st April, 2023 (the ‘appointed date’), hence the power 

business of Meghalaya Power Limited has been transferred 

to the Company. 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
During the year under review Four (4) Board Meetings 

were convened and held on 18th May, 2023, 07th August, 

2023, 8th November, 2023 and 06th February, 2024. The 

intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
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The composition of the Board and the attendance details of 

the members are given below:

Sl. 
No.

Name of the 
Director

Category No. of Meeting

Held Attended

1. Mr. Prem 

Kumar 

Bhajanka

Director 4 1

2. Mr. Sajjan 

Bhajanka

Director 4 4

3. Mr. Sanjay 

Agarwal

Director 4 4

4. Mr. Rajendra 

Chamaria

Director 4 3

5. Mr. Pankaj 

Kejriwal

Director 4 2

6. Mr. Tushar 

Bhajanka

Director 4 4

7. Mrs. Clara Suja Director 4 1

8. Mr. Pramod 

Kumar Shah

Independent 

Director

4 4

9. Mr. Emlangky 

Lamare 

Whole-time 

Director

4 1

10. Mr. Nirmalya 

Bhattacharyya

Independent 

Director

4 3

MEETINGS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
During the year under review, a meeting of Independent 

Directors was held on 28th March, 2024 wherein the 

performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the 

Board as a whole was reviewed. The Independent Directors 

at their meeting also assessed the quality, quantity and 

timeliness of flow of information between the Company 

management and the Board of Directors of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
AND INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial 

Standards as recommended by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India. The Company has also complied with 

all relevant Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) referred 

to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 while 

preparing the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to requirement of Section 134 (3) (c) read with 

section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors 

hereby confirm and state that:

•	 In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable 

Accounting Standards have been followed along with the 

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

•	 The Directors have selected such accounting policies and 

have applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

as at 31st March, 2024 and of the profit of the Company 

for the year under review;

•	 The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities;

•	 The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on 

going concern basis;

•	 The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating 

effectively.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
All Independent Directors have given declarations that 

they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 

under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and they 

have complied with the Code for Independent Directors 

prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act. Mr. Pramod Kumar 

Shah and Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya are Independent 

Directors on the Board of your Company. In the opinion of 

the Board and as confirmed by these Directors, they fulfill 

the conditions specified in Section 149 of the Act and the 

Rules made thereunder about their status as Independent 

Directors of the Company.

Your Board of Directors formed opinion that the Independent 

Directors of the Company are maintaining highest standard 

of integrity and possessing expertise, requisite qualifications 

and relevant experience in the fields of Administration, 

General management, Accounts & Finance, Audit, Internal 

Audit, Taxation, Risk, Board procedures, Governance etc., 

for performing their role as Independent Directors of the 

Company. Regarding proficiency, all Independent Directors 

have registered themselves in the Data Bank maintained 

with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA), Manesar. 

In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6(4) of the 

Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014, the Independent Directors are required to undertake 

online proficiency self- assessment test conducted by the 

IICA within a period of two (2) years from the date of inclusion 

of their names in the data bank. Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya 

and Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah appeared in ‘online proficiency 

test’ and have successfully qualified the test.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 
OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES
The Board has framed a Remuneration Policy for selection, 

appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 
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Personnel and Senior Management employees. The 

remuneration policy aims to enable the Company to attract, 

retain and motivate highly qualified members for the Board 

and at other executive levels. The remuneration policy 

seeks to enable the Company to provide a well-balanced 

and performance-related compensation package, taking 

into account shareholder interests, industry standards and 

relevant Indian corporate regulations.

AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT
M/s Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 

Number: 302049E) have been appointed by the members 

at the 17th Annual General Meeting of the members of the 

Company and shall hold office for a period of 5 years from 

the date of such meeting held on 23rd September, 2022. 

The Statutory Auditors’ Report “with an unmodified opinion”, 

given by M/s. Singhi & Co., on the Financial Statements of 

the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024, 

is appended in the Financial Statements forming part of this 

Annual Report. 

The notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report 

are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further 

comments.

COST AUDITORS
Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment 

Rules, 2014, the cost audit records maintained by the 

Company in respect of its manufacturing activity is required 

to be audited. Your Directors have, on the recommendation 

of the Audit Committee, appointed M/s B. G. Chowdhury & 

Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration number: 000064) 

as Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2024 in the Board Meeting held on 18th 

May, 2023. The remuneration proposed to be paid to them 

for the financial year 2023-24, as recommended by audit 

committee, was ratified in the meeting of shareholders held 

on 26th September, 2023.

M/s. B. G. Chowdhury & Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm 

Registration Number: 000064) have expressed their 

willingness to be re-appointed as Cost Auditors of the 

Company for ensuing financial year. The Board, on 

recommendation of the audit committee has re-appointed 

M/s. B. G. Chowdhury & Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm 

Registration Number: 000064) as Cost Auditors of the 

Company for the financial year 2024-25 subject to 

ratification of their remuneration by shareholders in the 

General Meeting of the Company.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is placed before 

the Members in a General Meeting for their ratification. 

Accordingly, a Resolution seeking Members’ ratification for 

the remuneration payable to M/s. B. G. Chowdhury & Co., 

Cost Auditors for the financial year 2024-25 is included in 

the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

The cost audit report for the Financial Year 2022-23 was filed 

with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 6th September, 

2023.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 

the Company has appointed M/s. MKB & Associates (Firm 

Registration Number: P2010WB042700), a firm of Company 

Secretaries in Practice, to undertake the Secretarial Audit 

of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed 

herewith and marked as Annexure-1. The report is self-

explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

REPORTING OF FRAUD
The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as 

specified under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS
During the year under review, your Company has not 

provided guarantee or security in connection with a loan to 

any person exceeding the limit specified in Section 186 of 

the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of Loans given and investments made by your 

Company to its Fellow Subsidiary falling under ambit of 

Section 186 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 were within the 

limits prescribed. Details of the loans given and investment 

made covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial 

Statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis, 

in the ordinary course of business and are in compliance with 

the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. There 

are no materially significant related party transactions made 

by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel or other designated persons which may have 

a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at 

large. In terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars of 

the material contract or arrangement entered into by the 

Company with related parties as referred to in section 188 

in Form AOC-2 is attached and marked as Annexure-2 of 

this report. However, the details of the transactions with 

the Related Party are provided in the Company’s financial 

statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards.
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All Related Party Transactions are presented to the Audit 

Committee and the Board. Omnibus approval is obtained 

for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive 

in nature. A statement of all related party transactions is 

presented before the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis, 

specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the 

transactions.

RESERVES
During the year under review no amount was transferred to 

reserves.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The information on conservation of energy, technology 

absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo as 

stipulated in section 134 (3) (m) of the Act and rules framed 

there under is mentioned below:

(A)	  Steps taken toward Conservation of energy:

•	 Commissioning of Waste heat recovery system. 

Gross Generation from WHRS in FY 23-24 is 72,399 

MWh.

•	 Installation of 90 Kw VFD in Reverse Air fan system 

resulted in power saving of 53 kWh per day.

(B)	 Steps taken toward Technical Absorption:

•	 Installation of Proxy pulser in all long belt conveyors 

to prevent the proximity and avoided tripping of 

conveyors.

•	 Stand by VFD of 132 kw,160 kw,180 kw installed in 

Cooler fans to avoid the tripping of kiln.

•	 During the year under review, your Company 

incurred Revenue Expenditure of NIL (P.Y. H2.19 lacs) 

and there was Capital expenditure of NIL (P.Y. H3.35 

lacs) in Research & Development.

(C)	 Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo

•	 During the period under review, Foreign Exchange 

Earning was NIL (Previous year Nil) and Foreign 

Exchange Outgo was H74.31 lacs (Previous year H Nil).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Your Company has left significant foot prints in various areas 

towards fulfilling its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

objectives. 

During the year under review, your Company continued 

to make substantial contribution towards education, 

health & sanitation, disaster relief and rural & infrastructure 

development. Which contributed a steady transformation of 

rural society both at social and economic levels. 

Your Company has performed several CSR activities 

throughout the financial year for the wellbeing of the 

surrounding society. 

Annual Report on CSR as required to be annexed in terms 

of requirement of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and 

rules framed thereunder is annexed herewith and marked as 

Annexure- 3.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies 

Act 2013, the performance evaluation of the Board was 

carried out during the year under review. The Board follows 

a formal mechanism for the evaluation of the performance 

of the Board as well as Committee. The evaluation reflected 

the overall engagement of the Board and the Committee.

A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into 

consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering 

various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy 

of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board 

culture, execution and performance of specific duties, 

obligations and governance.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its 

meeting established the criteria based on which the Board 

evaluate the performance of the Directors.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the 

performance of individual Directors including the Chairman 

of the Board, on parameters such as level of engagement 

and contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding 

the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders, 

etc. The performance evaluation of the Non-Independent 

Directors and Board as a whole was also carried out by the 

Independent Directors.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction over the evaluation 

process and results thereof. 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 

2013 and in terms of the Memorandum and Articles of 

Association of the Company, Mr. Pankaj Kejriwal & Mr. 

Rajendra Chamaria, Director will retire by rotation and being 

eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. In view of their 

considerable experience, your Directors recommend their 

re-appointment.

On the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company in their 

meeting held on 06th February, 2024 has re-appointed Mr. 

Emlangky Lamare (DIN: 09048856) as Whole-time Director 

& Key Managerial Personnel of the Company for a further 

period of 3 (three) years effective from 08th February, 

2024 upto 07th February, 2027 subject to approval of the 

shareholders of the Company at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting.



Annual Report 2023-24  |  7

Statutory Reports Financial Statements

The following are Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

1.	 Mr. Emlangky Lamare - Whole-time Director

2.	 Mr. Ravi Bharati - Chief Financial Officer 

3.	 Mr. Brij Mohan Jha – Company Secretary

HOLDING COMPANY
Your Company continues to remain subsidiary of M/s Star 

Cement Limited which holds 100% equity in the Company.

The Board of Directors of your Company at its meeting 

dated 02nd February, 2023 and 18th May, 2023 had 

approved a draft scheme of amalgamation of the 

Company (Transferee Company) with Megha Technical & 

Engineers Private Limited, Meghalaya Power Limited and 

NE Hills Hydro Limited (Transferor Companies) pursuant 

to provisions of Section 230 to 232 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the 

Rules made thereunder. In terms of the order of the Hon’ble 

National Company Law Tribunal, Guwahati Bench (NCLT) 

the meeting of the secured and unsecured creditors of the 

transferee and transferor Company were duly convened on 

27th November, 2023, wherein the resolution approving the 

Scheme of Amalgamation were duly passed.

The Transferor & Tranferee Company had filed the petition 

on 14th December, 2023. The NCLT vide its order dated 

10th May, 2024 has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation 

with effect from 1st April, 2023 (the ‘appointed date’). The 

Scheme became effective after filing of the Order of the 

NCLT with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs i.e. on 20th May, 

2024.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE 

The Company does not have any subsidiary and joint 

venture. During the year under review, M/s Star Cement 

North East Limited and M/s Star Cement (I) Limited became 

the Associate Company.

DEPOSITS
During the year under report, the Company has not accepted 

any deposits from public or from any of the Directors of the 

Company or their relatives falling under ambit of Section 73 

of the Companies Act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 
COURTS OR REGULATORS
(i) 	 In respect of demand notice dated 19th February, 2020 

received by the Company from Director of Mineral 

Resources, Meghalaya, for payment of royalty, MEPRF, 

VAT/GST for H21,497.85 Lakhs in pursuance to the 

National Green Tribunal (NGT) order dated 17-01-2020 

passed in O.A. No. 110(TCH)/2012 for alleged illegal 

coal procurement. By passing the said order NGT has 

accepted the Recommendation of the 5th Interim 

Report of the Independent Committee set up by NGT, 

which has suggested imposition of penalty on Cement 

Companies and Thermal Power Plants in Meghalaya.

	 The Company did not purchase any illegal coal and 

had complied with all disclosure requirements of the 

various Government Departments. The Report of 

NGT Committee has been founded on the basis of 

assumptions and views of the Committee and not on 

hard facts. Further to note, that neither the Company has 

been issued a show-cause nor any opportunity of being 

heard was given to the Company before submitting the 

Interim reports by the Independent Committee to NGT. 

Even NGT has not served any notice on the Company 

before passing the impugned order dated 17-01-2020 

which is clear violation of principles of natural justice.

	 Accordingly, the Group had preferred an appeal, being 

C.A. No.3280 of 2020, before the Apex Court. The Apex 

court vide it’s order dated 02.05.2023 restored the 

proceeding in relation to the Company back to the file 

of the NGT, at the stage, at which they stood prior to the 

passing of the judgement dated 17.01.2020.

	 Subsequently the matter was transferred to the NGT, 

Eastern Zone Bench and re-numbered as OA No. 

154/2023/EZ. The Company has appeared in the case 

through it’s counsel and filed Affidavit in the case and 

the said case is now listed for hearing before the NGT, 

Kolkata on 02.08.2024. (Refer Note no. 44(a) of Notes to 

Accounts).

(ii)	 During the previous year the Company had received 

a demand notice dated 20th March, 2023 from the 

Divisional Mining Officer (DMO), Directorate of Mineral 

Resources, Meghalaya, Jowai towards outstanding 

dues of royalty & Cess on Coal, Sandstone, Clay and 

Shale procured/consumed by the Company in certain 

specific periods between F.Y. 2009-10 to F.Y. 2022-

23 amounting to H9,408.42 Lakhs (including H5,650.25 

Lakhs towards Penal Interest). As per the provisions of 

the Mines and Minerals (Development and Regulation) 

Act, 1957, the liability for payment of royalty in respect 

of any mineral removed/ consumed from the mining 

lease arises on the holder of the mining lease and 

not on the purchaser of such mined minerals. Hence, 

there is no obligation of the Company to pay royalty/

cess in case the minerals are procured from third 

party vendors. On 27th February 2024, the Office of 

DMO has issued the no dues certificates for payment 

of Royalty and Cess on Shale purchased from Local 

suppliers during the period from Dec, 2019 to Jan, 

2024, and as such, the Department has admitted that 

there is no liability of the Company towards payment of 

Royalty and Cess on Shale. Accordingly the company 
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has written back Cess liability on Shale lying in the 

books of accounts amounting to H128.51 lakhs during 

the year and reduced contingent liability pertaining to 

Royalty and cess on Shale amounting to H1803.71 lakhs 

(including penal interest amounting to H775.14 lakhs). 

However, as an abundant precaution, the Company 

has kept liability towards Royalty & Cess on others 

mineral products amounting to H1803.11 Lakhs. Since 

the liability to pay royalty & Cess itself is not applicable 

to the Company, hence provision for differential 

amount of demand amounting to H797.98 Lakhs and 

penal interest amounting to H4875.10 Lakhs has not 

been provided and shown as contingent liability. The 

Company shall contest the above demand and based 

on the legal opinion obtained in this regard, it believes 

the said demand raised by the DMO is not tenable and 

the matter shall be disposed off in the favour of the 

Company. (Refer Note no. 44(b) of Notes to Accounts).

(iii)	 During the previous year, the Commissioner of Customs 

(Port)- Kolkata has issued a demand cum show cause 

notice (D&SCN) dated October 22, 2022 to the Company 

for differential custom duty amounting to H403.82 lakhs 

& interest & penalties thereon (as applicable) for non-

fulfilment of export obligations (EO) against Import 

of Capital goods in the year 2009 to 2011 under four 

EPCG licenses as per Export Promotion Capital Goods 

(EPCG) scheme. In previous financial year, on April 26, 

2022, the Deputy Director, DRI, Shillong Regional Unit 

had also seized certain machineries of the Company 

valuing H5,027.01 lakhs alleging non-fulfilment of EO 

as mentioned above but later allowed to continue 

the use of the seized machinery. In the said D&SCN, 

the company has been asked to reply as to why the 

seized imported machineries as above should not be 

confiscated and why differential Custom duty foregone 

shall not be demanded along with applicable interest & 

penalties. The D&SCN as above also disputed the EO 

fulfilled by the Company against two EPCG licenses 

either by itself or through its group Company in earlier 

years. In its reply to the Commissioner of Customs 

(Port)- Kolkata, the Company has claimed that it has 

fulfilled all its EO as required against all the four EPCG 

licenses and further paid the differential custom duty & 

interest thereon where there was shortfall in fulfilling 

the EO and hence the said demand is not tenable. 

The Company has further stated that fulfilment of EO 

through the group Company was well within the ambit 

of Foreign Trade Policy. The Company firmly believes 

that it has a good case in this matter and hence no 

provision has been made in the books of accounts.

	 Further in the previous year, Additional Director General 

of Foreign Trade, Guwahati had imposed a penalty of 

H311.56 lakhs on the similar grounds as mentioned 

above in case of one EPCG license. On its appeal before 

Director General of Foreign Trade, Delhi (DGFT), DGFT 

vide its order dated August 08, 2022 has remanded 

back the matter to Regional Authority, Guwahati for 

de-novo consideration and the matter is pending at the 

DGFT, Guwahati. The Company has not considered this 

amount as Contingent liability. 

	 Other than the aforesaid, there have been no significant 

and material orders passed by the Courts/ Regulators 

impacting the going concern status and future 

operations of the Company. (Refer Note no. 44(c) of 

Notes to Accounts).

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY
No material changes or commitments have occurred 

between the end of the financial year and the date of this 

Report which affect the financial statements of the Company 

in respect of the reporting year.

CREDIT RATINGS
Your Company enjoys a sound reputation for its prudent 

financial management and its ability to meet financial 

obligations. On the request of the Company ICRA Limited 

has withdrawn its working capital ratings assigned to 

the Company’s short term and the long term fund based 

limits. The CRISIL ratings for the Long term and Short Term 

fund based limits are in force. CRISIL Ratings, has affirmed 

the Company’s long term rating to CRISIL AA/Stable 

(pronounced as CRISIL double A) and short term rating to 

CRISIL A1+ (pronounced CRISIL A one plus).

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 
The Company has an Internal Control System, 

commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 

operations. To maintain its objectivity and independence, 

the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of the 

Audit Committee of the Board.

The Internal Auditors monitors and evaluates the efficacy 

and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its 

compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures 

and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the 

report of internal audit function, process owners undertake 

corrective action in their respective areas and thereby 

strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and 

recommendations along with corrective actions thereon are 

presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Company has in place adequate internal financial 

controls commensurate with the size, scale and complexity 

of its operations. During the year, such controls were 
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tested and no reportable material weakness in the design 

or operations were observed. The Company has policies 

and procedures in place for ensuring proper and efficient 

conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY 
PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY 
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016
There was no application made or proceeding pending 

against the company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code, 2016, during the year under review.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE IN VALUATION
The requirement to disclose the details of difference 

between amount of the valuation done at the time of 

onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking 

loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the 

reasons thereof, is not applicable.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
The Company values the integrity and dignity of its 

employees. The Company has put in place a ‘Policy 

on Prevention of Sexual Harassment’ as per the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“Sexual Harassment 

Act”). We affirm that adequate access has been provided to 

any complainants who wish to register a complaint under 

the policy. No complaint was received during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management refers to the practice of identifying 

potential risks in advance, analyzing them and taking 

precautionary steps to reduce the risk. The Company has 

evolved a risk management framework to identify, assess 

and mitigate the key risk factors of the business. The Board of 

the Company is kept informed about the risk management 

of the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The details of composition of the Committees of the Board 

of Directors are as under:-

•	 Audit Committee

	 Your Company has an Audit Committee at the Board 

level, which acts as a link between the management, the 

statutory and internal auditors and the Board of Directors 

to oversee the financial reporting process. 

	 During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 

Four (4) times to deliberate on the various matters. The 

Meetings were held on 18th May, 2023; 07th August, 

2023; 08th November, 2023 and 06th February, 2024. 

The composition of the Committee and the attendance 

details of the members are given below:

Name of the Director Category Chairman/ Members No. of Meeting
Held Attended

Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya Independent Chairman 4 3
Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka Non- Independent Member 4 4
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Independent Member 4 4

	 A Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism provides a formal 

mechanism to the Employees and Directors to report 

to the Management, concerns about unethical behavior, 

actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Codes of 

conduct or policy. The mechanism provides for adequate 

safeguards against victimization of employees and 

Directors to avail of the mechanism and also provide for 

direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in 

exceptional cases. Pursuant to the requirements of the 

Act, the Company has established vigil mechanism for its 

directors and employees under the supervision of audit 

committee. A whistle blower policy setting out the vigil 

mechanism is already in place in your Company.

•	 Nomination & Remuneration Committee

	 The Committee identifies, screens and review individuals 

who are qualified to become Directors, Key managerial 

Personnel and Senior Management staff. The Committee 

also makes recommendations to the Board for such 

appointment and removal and carries out evaluation of 

every director’s performance. 

	 During the year under review, the Committee met 

twice to deliberate on the various matters. The Meeting 

held on 18th May, 2023 and 06th February, 2024. The 

composition of the Committee and the attendance 

details of the members are given below:

Name of the Director Category Chairman/ Members No. of Meeting
Held Attended

Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya Independent Chairman 2 2
Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka Non-Independent Member 2 2
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Independent Member 2 2
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•	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

	 The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 

was constituted as per the requirements of Section 135 

of the Companies Act, 2013 at the Board level. During the 

year, your Company has carried out various activities as 

part of its CSR initiative. The focus areas have been health 

care, education, sustainable livelihood, infrastructure and 

social reform.

	 During the year, the Committee met 2 (two) times. 

The meetings were held on 18th May, 2023 and 06th 

February, 2024. The composition of the Committee and 

the attendance details of the members are given below:

HUMAN AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
Employee relationship with your Company continues to 

remain cordial and harmonious. Your Directors place on 

record their appreciation for the continued support rendered 

by the employees of the Company.

The Company is continuing its efforts in induction of 

local managerial and non-managerial employees and has 

conducted regular recruitment and training programs for 

development of required skills at the local level.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The statement containing particulars of employees as 

required under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 5 (2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 

annexed herewith and marked as Annexure - 4 and forms 

part of this report. The Company has no employee whose 

remuneration exceeds the limit prescribed under section 

197 read with Rule 5(2) of The Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation 

for the assistance and cooperation received from the 

Banks, financial Institutions, Government Authorities, 

Local authorities, customers, vendors, business partners/

associates and Holding Company for their continued 

guidance and support. 

Your Directors would also like to place on record their 

sincere appreciation for the commitment, dedication and 

hard work put in by every member of the Company and 

dedicates the credit for the Company’s achievements to 

them.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Tushar Bhajanka	 Sajjan Bhajanka

Director	 Director

(DIN: 09179632)	 (DIN: 00246043)

Place: Lumshnong

Date: 22nd May, 2024

•	 Finance Committee

	 The Finance Committee deals within the terms of 

reference defined by the Board and ensures their 

expeditious implementation.

	 During the year under review, the Finance Committee 

met six (6) times to deliberate on the various matters. The 

Meetings were held on 12th June, 2023, 07th August, 

2023, 31st October, 2023, 10th January, 2024, 20th 

January, 2024 and 1st February, 2024. The composition 

of the Committee and the attendance details of the 

members are given below:

Name of the Director Category Chairman/ Members No. of Meeting

Held Attended

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Non-Independent Chairman 2 2

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka Non-Independent Member 2 2

Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Independent Member 2 2

Name of the Director Category Chairman/ Members No. of Meeting

Held Attended

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka Non-Independent Chairman 6 6

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Non-Independent Member 6 6

Mr. Rajendra Chamaria Non-Independent Member - -
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Annexure-1

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the financial year ended March 31, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

STAR CEMENT MEGHALAYA LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 

of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by STAR CEMENT MEGHALAYA 

LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/

statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation 

and maintenance of secretarial and other records and for 

devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of applicable laws and Regulations. 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute 

books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 

during the conduct of secretarial audit and considering the 

relaxations granted by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, we 

hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 

the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 

March, 2024 generally complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 

Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to 

the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms 

and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024, 

to the extent applicable, according to the provisions of:

i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 

thereunder;

ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and 

Rules made thereunder [ Not applicable to the Company 

during the audit period]; 

iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and Regulations and Bye-

laws framed thereunder; 

iv)	 The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 

Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct investment 

and External Commercial Borrowings; 

v)	 The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 

Securities & Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI 

Act”) or by SEBI were not applicable.

vi)	 Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws which 

are generally applicable to all manufacturing companies, 

the following laws/acts are also, inter alia, applicable to 

the Company:

a)	 The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

b)	 The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) 

Act, 1974

c)	 The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 

1981

d)	 The Legal Metrology Act, 2009

e)	 The Petroleum Act, 1934

f)	 The Mines and Minerals (Development and 

Regulation) Act, 1957

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 

clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review the Company has generally 

complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We further report that

a)	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 

constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

There were no changes in the composition of the Board 

of Directors that took place during the period under 

review.
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b)	 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 

Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system 

exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 

and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

c)	 None of the directors in any meeting dissented on any 

resolution and hence there was no instance of recording 

any dissenting member’s view in the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and 

processes in the Company commensurate with the size 

and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which 

is annexed as Annexure – I which forms an integral part of 

this report.

For MKB & Associates

Company Secretaries

Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Raj Kumar Banthia

Partner

Membership no. 17190

COP no. 18428

Place: Kolkata 	 Peer Review Certificate No.: 1663/2022

Date: 22nd May, 2024 	 UDIN: A017190F000421693

Annexure – I

To

The Members,

STAR CEMENT MEGHALAYA LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 It is management’s responsibility to identify the Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Directions which are applicable 

to the Company depending upon the industry in which it operates and to comply and maintain those records with same 

in letter and in spirit. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on those records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 

are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for 

our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management’s Representation about the compliance of Laws, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines and Directions and happening events, etc.

5.	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MKB & Associates

Company Secretaries

Firm Reg No: P2010WB042700

Raj Kumar Banthia

Partner

Membership no. 17190

COP no. 18428

Place: Kolkata 	 Peer Review Certificate No.: 1663/2022

Date: 22nd May, 2024 	 UDIN: A017190F000421693
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Annexure-2

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)  

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

	 Tushar Bhajanka	 Sajjan Bhajanka

Place: Lumshnong	 Director	 Director

Date: 22nd May, 2024	 (DIN: 09179632)	 (DIN: 00246043)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 
transactions under third proviso thereto

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis – NIL

	 All transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties were on arm’s length basis.

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

(a)	 Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship –

	 Star Cement Limited, Holding Company

(b)	 Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions – 

(i)	 Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials [Section 188(1)(a) of Companies Act, 2013]

(ii)	 Availing and Rendering of Services [Section 188(1)(d) of Companies Act, 2013]

(c)	 Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions – 

	 On-going transaction (Continuous)

(d)	 Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

	 The transaction with Star Cement Limited includes:

(i)	 Sale of Clinker, Iron Ore, Shale, Coal, Store and Spares Materials, Fixed Asset Items

(ii)	 Purchase of Store and Spare Materials, Cement and Limestone 

(iii)	 Services availed and rendered

	 The transaction value for the financial year 2023-24 with SCL was H1,01,974.77 lakhs.  

(e)	 Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

	 Since these RPTs are in the ordinary course of business and are at arm’s length basis, approval of the Board is not 

applicable. However, these are reported to the Audit Committee / Board at their quarterly meetings.

(f)	 Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
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Annexure-3

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
ACTIVITIES/ INITIATIVES

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act & Rules made thereunder]

1.	 A brief outline on the Company’s CSR policy: 

	 The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per 

The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as and when amended. The main objective of the 

policy is to establish the basic principles and the general framework of action for management to undertake and fulfil its 

Corporate Social Responsibility.

2. 	 Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. 

No.

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 

Directorship

Number of meetings 

of CSR Committee 

held during the year

Number of meetings 

of CSR Committee 

attended during the 

year

1 Mr. Sanjay Agarwal  Chairman (Non-Executive Director) 2 2

2 Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka  Member (Non-Executive Director) 2 2

3 Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah  Member (Independent Director) 2 2

3.	 Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by 
the board are disclosed on the website of the company: Not Applicable

4.	 Provide the executive summary along with the web-link(s) of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried 
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014, as amended, if applicable (attach the report).: Not Applicable

5. (a) Average Net Profit of the Company for last 3 financial years as per section 135(5): H7,783.67 lakhs

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): H155.68 lakhs

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 

years: 

Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d): H155.68 lakhs

6. (a) Amount spent CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): H231.92 lakhs

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+c) H231.92 lakhs

(e)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year 

(in H)

Amount Unspent (in H)

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135(5)

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

H231.92 lakhs  NIL
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7.	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Sl. 

No.

Preceding 

Financial 

Year(s)

Amount 

transferred 

to Unspent 

CSR Account 

under section 

135 (6) (in H)

Balance 

Amount in 

Unspent CSR 

Account 

under section 

135(6) (in H)

Amount 

spent 

in the 

Financial 

Year

(in H)

Amount transferred to 

any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per 

section 135(5), if any

Amount 

remaining to 

be spent in 

succeeding 

financial 

years (in H)

Deficiency, 

if any

Amount (in H) Date of 

transfer

NIL

8.	 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount 
spent in the Financial Year:

Yes No

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired          Not Applicable

	 Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount 

spent in the financial year: 

Sl. 

No.

Short particulars of the 

property or asset (s)

(including complete 

address and location 

of the property)

Pincode 

of the 

property or 

asset(s)

Date of 

creation

Amount 

of CSR 

amount 

spent

Details of entity/Authority/beneficiary of the 

registered owner

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

CSR 

Registration 

Number, if 

applicable

Name Registered 

Address

(Note: All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no., house no., Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/

Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

9. 	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5).: Not Applicable

(f) 	 Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular Amount (H in Lakhs)

(1) (2) (3)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 155.68

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 231.92

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 76.24

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years, if any

Nil

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 76.24

	 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

	 Tushar Bhajanka	 Sanjay Agarwal

Place: Lumshnong	 Director	 Chairman- CSR Committee

Date: 22nd May, 2024	 (DIN: 09179632)	 (DIN: 00246132)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To 

The Members of Star Cement Meghalaya Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements 

of Star Cement Meghalaya Limited (“the Company”), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2024, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 

income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of 

changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to 

the financial statements, including a summary of material 

accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner 

so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 

the Indian accounting standards and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 

the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other 

comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in 

equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in 

accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified 

under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 

those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements‘ 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company 

in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 

the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 

the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 

the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 

the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

preparation of the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Company’s 

Directors Report, but does not include the financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 

the other information and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have 

nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 

the preparation of these financial statements that give a true 

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 

including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 

changes in equity of the Company in accordance with 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 

the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance 

of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is 

responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 

the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements
Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
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and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 

the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)

(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements 

in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management and Board of 

Directors of the company.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 

of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 

in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 

our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern and, 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 

of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 

financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 

it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may 

be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 

and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 

the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 

with them all relationships and other matters that may 

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters
The comparative financial information of the company 

for the year ended 31st March 2023 includes financial 

information of NE Hills Hydro Limited (NHHL) that were 

audited by the erstwhile auditors of the NE Hills Hydro 

Limited. The audit report dated 18th May, 2023 on the 

audited financial statement of NHHL for the year ended 

31st March 2023 issued by erstwhile auditors expressed an 

unmodified opinion.

Our opinion is not modified in respect to above matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 

4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit;

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 

by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books 
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except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(i)

(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014;

(c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 

Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the 

Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes 

in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

with the books of account;

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements 

comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 

Companies (India Accounting Standards) Rules 

2015 as amended;

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 

from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 

directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 

164 (2) of the Act;

(f)	 With respect to maintenance of accounts and other 

matters connected therewith, reference is made to 

our remarks in paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting 

under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.

(g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements 

of the Company and the operating effectiveness 

of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

“Annexure B” to this report. Our report expresses an 

unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 

controls with reference to the financial statements;

(h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 

in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of the section 197(16) of the Act, as 

amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanation given 

to us, the managerial remuneration for the year 

ended March 31, 2024 has been paid / provided by 

the Company to its directors in accordance with 

the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V 

to the Act;

(i)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 

in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 

as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations 

given to us:

i.	 The impacts of pending litigations on the 

financial position of the Company have been 

disclosed in the financial statement as required 

in terms of the Ind AS and provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 - Refer Note No. 44 to 

the financial statements;

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term 

contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable 

losses;

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required 

to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.	 a.	 The Management has represented that, 

to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in the note no. 52, to the financial 

statement no funds have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed 

funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the Company 

to or in any other person or entity, including 

foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with 

the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 

shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 

or provide any guarantee, security or the 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b.	 The Management has represented that, 

to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in the note no. 52, to the financial 

statement no funds have been received by 

the Company from any person or entity, 

including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), 

with the understanding, whether recorded 

in writing or otherwise, that the Company 

shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 

or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; and

c.	 Based on the audit procedures that 

have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 

has come to our notice that has caused us 

to believe that the representations under 
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(a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstatement.

v.	 The Company has not declared any dividend 

in the previous year which has been paid in 

the current year. Further, no dividend has been 

declared in the current year.

vi.	 The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 

is applicable from 1 April 2023. Based on 

our examination which included test checks 

and in accordance with the requirements of 

Implementation Guide on Reporting on Audit 

Trail under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rule, 2014, we report that the 

Company has used accounting software for 

maintaining its books of account, which has a 

feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility 

and the same has operated throughout the 

year for all relevant transactions recorded in 

the software except Audit trail feature is not 

enabled for certain data changes to the data for 

users with certain access rights to a third party 

software. Further, where audit trail (edit log) 

facility was enabled and operated throughout 

the year, we did not come across any instance 

of audit trail feature being tampered with during 

the course of our audit.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 

11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 

preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements 

for record retention is not applicable for the year ended 

March 31, 2024.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 302049E

(Gopal Jain)

(Partner)

Place: Kolkata 	 Membership No. 059147

Date: 22nd May, 2024 	 UDIN:24059147BKEGTM2567 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date in respect to Statutory Audit of Star Cement Meghalaya Limited 
for the year ended March 31, 2024)

We report that:

I.	 a.	 (A)	 The Company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation, of property, plant & 

equipment.

(B)	 The Company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b.	 The Company has regular programme of physical 

verification of its property, plant and equipment by 

which property, plant and equipment are verified 

in a phased manner over a reasonable period 

of time, which in our opinion, is at reasonable 

intervals having regard to the size of the company 

and nature its property, plant and equipment. In 

accordance with this programme, certain property, 

plant & equipment were physically verified during 

the year. No material discrepancies were noticed 

on such verification.

c.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the title deeds of 

immovable properties (other than properties where 

the Company is a lessee and the lease agreements 

are duly executed in favour of the lessee), are held in 

the name of the Company except as detailed below: 

(Refer note 2.1(d) of the financial statements).

d.	 The Company has not revalued any of its Property, 

Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 

and intangible assets during the year.

e.	 According to information and explanations given 

to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, there are no proceedings 

initiated or pending against the Company for 

holding any benami property under the Prohibition 

of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and 

rules made thereunder.

(H In lakhs)

Description of 

property

Gross 

carrying 

value

Held in the 

name of

Whether held 

by promoter, 

director or 

their relative or 

employee

Period held- 

indicate 

range, where 

appropriate

Reason for not being held in 

the name of the Company. 

Also indicate if in dispute

Freehold Land 149.39 Ms. Sailyne Suja No Fresh Purchase 

during the FY 

2022-23

The title deeds are in the process 

of transfer in the name of the 

Company. However, necessary 

permission of transfer of land 

in the name of the company 

from appropriate authority has 

already been obtained.

Freehold Land 1485.32 Ms. Sailyne Suja No Fresh Purchase 

during the FY 

2023-24

The Title deed are in the process 

of transfer in the name of the 

company. However, necessary 

permission of transfer of land in 

the name of the company from 

the appropriate authority has 

already been obtained

Land, Factory 

bulding & Non 

factory Building

1899.36 Megha 

Technical and 

Engineers 

Private Limited

No Property 

acquired 

through 

amalgamation 

(refer note 49 

of the Financial 

Statements)

Property acquired through 

Amalgamation/merger, name 

change in the name of the 

Company is in process.
Land, Factory 

building & Non 

factory Building

4442.21 Meghalaya 

Power Limited

No
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II.	 a.	 The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been 

physically verified by the management during the 

year. As the Company’s inventory of raw materials, 

fuels and finished goods which comprises mostly 

of bulk materials such as Limestone, Clinker, Coal, 

etc. requiring technical expertise for quantification, 

the Company has hired an independent agency 

for the physical verification of the stock of these 

materials. In respect to goods in transit, evidence 

of subsequent receipts has been verified and 

linked with the goods-in-transit. In our opinion, 

the frequency of verification by the management 

is reasonable and the coverage and procedure 

for such verification is appropriate. Discrepancies 

of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of 

inventory were not noticed on physical verification 

of such inventories.

b.	 According to the information and explanations given 

to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has been 

sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five 

crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial 

institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 

In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements 

filed by the Company with such banks or financial 

institutions are not in agreement with the books of 

account of the Company as stated below (Refer 

note – 54 to the financial statements): -

iii.	 a.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not 

provided any guarantee or security or granted any 

loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured 

or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability 

partnership or any other parties during the year 

apart from the details given below: 

Particulars Loan given 

(H In Lakh)

Aggregate amount granted during 

the year

-To Holding Company

-To Associate Companies 23,452.00

-To Others 500.00

Balance outstanding as at balance 

sheet date in respect of above

-To Holding Company 5,618.08

-To Associate Companies 23,157.00

-To Others 275.00

b.	 During the year, the company has made investments 

in one of its Associate Company. In our opinion and 

according to the information and explanation given 

to us, the terms and conditions of the investment 

made and loan granted during the year are, prima 

facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

c.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and based on the audit procedures 

conducted by us, in respect of loan given to 

holding and associate companies, the schedule of 

repayment of principal and payment of interest has 

been stipulated and re payment of principle and 

payment of interest are regular. Further in case of 

Loans advanced to other parties in current year as 

well as earlier years, the repayment of principal & 

interest is on demand.

d.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, there is no overdue 

amount for more than ninety days in respect of 

loans given. Further, the Company has not given 

any advances in the nature of loans to any party 

during the year.

Name 

of bank

Quarter 

ended

Particulars Amount as 

reported in 

the quarterly 

return/ 

statement

Amount as 

per books 

of account

Amount of 

difference

Reason or variance

State 

Bank of 

India

March’24 Net Current 

Assets

31,913.50 32,689.16 (775.64) As explained by the 

management, the differences 

are because the statements filed 

with the lenders are based on 

financial statements prepared on 

a provisional basis and also due 

to audit/ accounting adjustment 

entries carried out subsequently.

December’23 Net Current 

Assets

37,321.26 37,991.67 (670.41) 

September’23 Net Current 

Assets

34,525.11 37,609.31 (3,084.20) 

June’23 Net Current 

Assets

31,165.77 36,210.78  (5,045.01) 
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e.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, there is no loan 

granted by the company that have fallen due during 

the year, which has been renewed or extended or 

fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing 

loans given to same parties except in case of loan 

granted to the holding company.

f.	 In our opinion and according to the information 

and explanation given to us, the Company has not 

granted any loans, either repayable on demand or 

without specifying any terms or period of repayment 

to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 

or any other parties except for two parties and the 

details as required as per clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order 

is as follows.

IV.	 In our opinion and according to the information 

and explanations provided to us, the Company has 

not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or 

security to the parties covered under Section 185 of the 

Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of 

Section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made.

V.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits or 

amounts which are deemed to be deposits within 

the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 

Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as 

amended). Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(v) 

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

VI.	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account 

maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made 

by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost 

records under Section 148 (1) of the Act in respect of 

the Company’s products to which the said rules are 

made applicable and are of the opinion that prima 

facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been 

made and maintained. We have however not made a 

detailed examination of the said records with a view to 

determine whether they are accurate or complete.

VII.	 According to the information and explanations given to 

us and on the basis of our examination of the books of 

account,

a.	 The company is generally regular, except as stated 

below, in depositing with appropriate authorities 

undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, 

Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-

tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services tax, Duty of 

customs, Duty of excise, Value Added Tax, Cess 

and Other Statutory Dues applicable to it. In our 

opinion, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 

of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 

Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and 

Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value 

added tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues were 

outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more 

than six months from the date they became payable 

except liability towards Meghalaya Minor Minerals 

Reclamation Fund amounting to H188.35 lakhs.

b.	 Details of statutory dues referred to sub clause (a) 

above which have not been deposited as on March 

31, 2024 on account of any dispute are given below:

(H In lakhs)

Name of the Parties Aggregate amount of overdues 

of existing loans renewed or 

extended or settled by fresh loans

Percentage of the aggregate to the 

total loans or advances in the nature 

of loans granted during the year

Star Cement Limited 5,813.08 19.52%

(H In lakhs)

All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate amount of loans/advance in nature of loans.

Repayable on Demand

500.00 Nil Nil

Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the total 

loans

1.85% _ -

Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount  

(H in lakhs)*

Period to which 

amount relates

Forum where the dispute is 

pending

The Service Tax Act, 

1994

Service Tax 51.31 FY 2008 - 09 & 

FY 2009 - 10

Custom Excise & Service Tax 

Appellate Tribunal

MVAT Act (###) / 

Central Sales Tax Act 

Sales Tax / VAT 2076.53 June 2013 to 

June 2017

High Court, Meghalaya

The Central Excise 

Act, 1944

Excise Duty 5.31 July 2013 - 

March 2014

Custom Excise & Service Tax 

Appellate Tribunal
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Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Amount  

(H in lakhs)*

Period to which 

amount relates

Forum where the dispute is 

pending

MMDR ACT, 1957, (#) 

GST ACT, 2017 & VAT 

ACT 

Royalty, MEPR 

(##), GST/VAT

9151.21 FY 2014-15 to FY 

2018-19

The National Green Tribunal Eastern 

Zone Bench, Kolkata

MMDR ACT, 1957 (#) Royalty on Coal 1142.24 June’12 – May’14 Divisional Mining Officer, West 

Jaintia Hills, Jowai

Meghalaya Electricity 

Duty Act

Electricity Duty 48.72 FY 2014-15 & FY 

2018-19

Office of the Superintendent of 

Taxes, Government of Meghalaya

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 1712.89 AY 2017-18 National Faceless Appeal Centre 

(NFAC), New Delhi

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 757.14 AY 2018-19 National Faceless Appeal Centre 

(NFAC), New Delhi

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 1051.61 AY 2019-20 National Faceless Appeal Centre 

(NFAC), New Delhi

CGST Act, 2017 Goods & Service 

Tax 

20.96 July'17 - Jan'19 Directorate General of Goods & 

Services Tax Intelligence, Shillong 

Regional Unit.

Central Sales Tax Act, 

1956

Sales Tax 17.10 FY 2015-16, 

2016-17, 2017-18

Suptd. Of Taxes, Guwahati

CGST Act, 2017 Goods & Service 

Tax

7.74 2017-18 Commissioner Appellate, Guwahati 

Assam, 

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 23.97 AY 2023-24 National Faceless Appeal Centre 

(NFAC), New Delhi

MMDR ACT, 1957, (#) 

GST ACT, 2017 & VAT 

ACT 

Royalty, MEPR 

(##), GST/VAT

12346.64 FY 2014-15 to FY 

2018-19

The National Green Tribunal Eastern 

Zone Bench, Kolkata

MMDR ACT, 1957 (#) Royalty & Cess on 

Coal, Lime Stone, 

Clay

4530.84 Dec’12 – Dec’22 Divisional Mining Officer, West 

Jaintia Hills, Jowai

CGST Act, 2017 GST on reverse

charge 

mechanism

1320.00 July'2017 Joint/Additional Commissioner 

of Central Goods & Service Tax, 

Central GST Commissionerate, 

Shillong

The Customs Act, 

1962

Custom Duty 403.82 FY 2022-23 Principal Commissioner of Customs 

(PORT), Kolkata

MMDR ACT, 1957 (#) Royalty & Cess on 

Coal, Lime Stone, 

Clay

188.35 FY 2022-23 & 

23-24

Director of Mineral Resources, 

Meghalaya

(#) MMDR: Mines And Minerals (Development And Regulation) Act, 1957
(##) Meghalaya Environment Protection & Restoration Fund
(###) Meghalaya Value Added Tax
(*) Net of deposit/ deposit under protest and to the extent quantified by relevant authorities

VIII.	 According to the information and explanations given to 

us and on the basis of our examination of the records 

of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 

disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as 

income in the books of account in the tax assessments 

under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the 

year.

IX.	 a.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company 

has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 

borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to 

any lender. 

b.	 According to the information and explanations 
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given to us and on the basis of the audit procedure, 

we report that the Company has not been declared 

Willful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution 

or government or government authority.

c.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, 

the company has not raised any fund by way of 

term loan. Accordingly, the requirement to report 

on clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is not applicable to 

the company.

d.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, we report that no 

funds raised on short-term basis have been used for 

Long- term purposes of the company.

e.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, we report that the 

Company has not taken any funds from any entity 

or person on account of or to meet the obligations 

of its associates as defined under the act. The 

company does not have any subsidiary and joint 

venture. 

f.	 According information and explanations given to us 

and on the basis of our examination of the records 

of the Company, we report that the Company has 

not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 

securities held in its Associates as defined under the 

act. The company does not have any subsidiary or 

joint venture.

X.	 a.	 According to the information and explanations 

given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the company, the Company did 

not raise any money by way of initial public offer 

or further public offer including debt instruments 

during the year.

b.	 The Company has not made any preferential 

allotment or private placement of shares or fully 

or partly convertible or optionally convertible 

debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)

(b) of the Order is not applicable.

XI.	 a.	 During the course of our examination of the 

books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing 

practices in India, and according to the information 

and explanation given to us, we have neither come 

across any instance of fraud by the Company or on 

the Company, noticed or reported during the year, 

nor have we been informed of any such case by the 

management.

b.	 During the course of our examination of the 

books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing 

practices in India, and according to the information 

and explanation given to us, a report under Section 

143(12) of the Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 

under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the 

Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting 

under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company.

c.	 As represented to us by the management, there 

are no whistle blower complaints received by the 

Company during the year.

XII.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 

Company. Accordingly, clause3(xii) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

XIII.	 According to the information and explanations given 

to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the Company, transactions with related parties are 

in Compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act 

where applicable and details of such transactions have 

been disclosed in the financial statements as required 

by the applicable accounting standards. Refer note no. 

47 to the financial statements of the company

XIV.	 a.	 Bases on the information and explanation provided 

to us and our audit procedure, in our opinion, 

the Company has an internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its 

business.

b.	 We have considered the internal audit reports of the 

Company issued till date for the period under audit.

XV.	 According to the information and explanations given 

to us and as represented to us by the management 

and based on our examination of the records of the 

Company, the Company has not entered into non- 

cash transactions with directors or persons connected 

with him. Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company.

XVI.	 a.	 The Company is not required to be registered 

under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 

3(xvi)(a) & (b) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.

b.	 The Company is not a Core Investment Company 

(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting under 

clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 
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c.	 Based on the information and explanations provided 

by the management of the Company, the Group 

does not have any CIC’s, which are part of the 

Group. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) 

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XVII.	The Company has not incurred any cash losses in 

the current year covered by our audit and in the 

immediately preceding financial year. 

XVIII.	There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors 

during the year accordingly the reporting under clause 

3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XIX.	 According to the information and explanations given 

to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (refer note 

– 51 in the financial statements), ageing and expected 

dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying 

the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board 

of Directors and management plans and based on 

our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 

causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 

as on the date of the audit report that the Company is 

not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 

of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, 

however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 

future viability of the Company. We further state that 

our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 

the audit report and we neither give any guarantee 

nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 

discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount 

under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant 

to any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) 

of the Order are not applicable.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 302049E

(Gopal Jain)

(Partner)

Place: Kolkata 	 Membership No. 059147

Date: 22nd May, 2024 	 UDIN:24059147BKEGTM2567

ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(g) with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date in respect to Statutory Audit of Star Cement Meghalaya Limited 
for the year ended March 31, 2024)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements of Star Cement Meghalaya Limited 

(“the Company”) as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with 

our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 

year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control with reference to financial statements 

criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with 

reference to Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 

its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 

2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 

internal financial controls with reference to financial 
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statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls with reference to Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 

ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 

of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 

audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls system with reference to financial statements and 

their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements included 

obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 

selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 

with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference 
to Financial Statements 

A company’s internal financial control with reference 

to financial statements is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 

with reference to financial statements includes those 

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 

of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 

of the company are being made only in accordance 

with authorizations of management and directors of the 

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 

use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 

a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 

controls with reference to financial statements, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override 

of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 

may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk 

that the internal financial control with reference to financial 

statements may become inadequate because of changes 

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to 

the explanation given to us, the Company has, in all material 

respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with 

reference to financial statements and such internal financial 

controls were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, 

based on the internal control with reference to financial 

statements criteria established by the Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls with 

reference to Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India.

For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 302049E

(Gopal Jain)

(Partner)

Place: Kolkata 	 Membership No. 059147

Date: 22nd May, 2024 	 UDIN:24059147BKEGTM2567



28  |  Star Cement Meghalaya Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(H In lakhs)
 Particulars Note  

No
As at  

March 31, 2024
As at  

March 31, 2023
A. Assets

Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2.1  52,816.75  39,322.55 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2.2  1,389.52  17,566.44 
(c) Right-of-use assets 2.3  231.27  262.43 
(d) Intangible assets 2.4  0.73  1.93 
(e) Investment in associates 3  4,004.00  4.00 
(f) Financial assets

(i) Investments 4  34.02  10,365.94 
(ii) Loans 5  28,775.08  2,913.08 
(ii) Other financial assets 6  70.01  5,546.96 

(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 7  10,115.90  10,524.70 
(h) Non- current tax assests (net) 8  954.94  948.78 
(i) Other non-current assets 9  757.30  1,848.90 
Total non-current assets		   99,149.52  89,305.71 
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 10  20,039.21  20,803.29 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 11  10,168.48  6,354.57 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12  1,797.83  330.00 
(iii) Bank balances (other than (ii) above) 13  4,478.39  9,901.77 
(iv) Loans 14  325.00  50.00 
(v) Other financial assets 15  631.81  1,718.57 

(c) Other current assets 16  6,995.88  9,153.67 
Total current assets  44,436.60  48,311.87 
Total assets  1,43,586.12  1,37,617.58 

B. Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17A  2,608.86  2,608.86 
(b) Equity share Suspense 17B  1,198.06  1,198.06 
(c) Other equity 18  1,28,574.70  1,19,887.45 
Total Equity  1,32,381.62  1,23,694.37 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Lease liability 19  213.64  240.55 
(b) Provisions 20  246.75  190.93 
(c) Other non current liabilities 21  617.58  723.29 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  1,077.97  1,154.77 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 22  51.22  1,763.11 
(ii) Lease liability 23  36.98  35.52 
(iii) Trade payables 24

(a) 	 Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  183.90  101.69 
(b) 	Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises
 6,228.79  7,046.91 

(iv) Other financial liabilities 25  797.50  852.06 
(b) Other current liabilities 26  2,689.18  2,933.17 
(c) Provisions 27  38.79  32.49 
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 28  100.17  3.49 
Total current liabilities  10,126.53  12,768.44 
Total liabilities  11,204.50  13,923.21 
Total equity and liabilities  1,43,586.12  1,37,617.58 

Material accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Star Cement Meghalaya Limited

For Singhi & Co.	 Ravi Bharati	 Sajjan Bhajanka
Chartered Accountants	 Chief Financial Officer	 Director
Firm Registration No.302049E	 DIN: 00246043

Gopal Jain	 Brij Mohan Jha	 Tushar Bhajanka
Partner 	 Company Secretary	 Director
Membership No. 059147	 DIN:09179632

Place : Kolkata/Lumshnong						    
Date : May 22, 2024
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

 (H in lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

 Particulars Note  

No

Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended 

March 31, 2023

1) INCOME

Revenue from operations 29  1,01,492.74  1,04,297.93 

Other income 30  2,231.24  3,110.91 

Total income  1,03,723.98  1,07,408.84 

2) EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 31  9,665.93  8,303.22 

Puchase of stock in trade  411.81  1,568.86 

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work- in- progress 32  434.13  8.98 

Employee benefit expenses 33  6,264.41  6,282.62 

Finance costs 34  219.21  89.67 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 35  6,205.80  5,402.39 

Power and fuel 46B  38,289.71  37,153.17 

Freight and forwarding expenses 36  24,665.84  29,160.95 

Other expenses 37  6,506.54  6,104.60 

Total expenses  92,663.38  94,074.46 

3) Profit before exceptional items and tax (1-2)  11,060.60  13,334.38 

4) Exceptional items  -  - 

5) Profit before tax (3-4)  11,060.60  13,334.38 

6) Tax expenses 38 & 7

- Current tax  1,937.79  2,324.56 

- Deferred tax  442.46  2,404.33 

- Income tax for earlier years  (12.15)  13.09 

Total tax expenses  2,368.10  4,741.98 

7) Profit for the year (5-6)  8,692.50  8,592.40 

8) Other comprehensive income 39A

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

-Remeasurements of defined benefit plans  (9.43)  0.45 

-Income tax related to above  3.30  0.74 

-Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income  1.35  1.62 

-Income tax related to above  (0.47)  - 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  -  - 

Other comprehensive income for the year  (5.25)  2.81 

9) Total comprehensive income for the year (7+8)  8,687.25  8,595.21 

10) Earnings per equity share of H 10 each 39B

Basic (H)  22.83  22.57 

Diluted (H)  22.83  22.57 

Material accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Star Cement Meghalaya Limited

For Singhi & Co.	 Ravi Bharati	 Sajjan Bhajanka

Chartered Accountants	 Chief Financial Officer	 Director

Firm Registration No.302049E	 DIN: 00246043

Gopal Jain	 Brij Mohan Jha	 Tushar Bhajanka

Partner 	 Company Secretary	 Director

Membership No. 059147	 DIN: 09179632

Place : Kolkata/Lumshnong						    

Date : May 22, 2024
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

A. Equity share capital 	 (H In lakhs)

 Particulars Amount

As at April 1, 2022  2,608.86 

Changes during the year  -  

As at March 31, 2023  2,608.86 

Changes during the year  -  

As at March 31, 2024  2,608.86 

B. Equity share suspense (refer note 49)	 (H In lakhs)

 Particulars Amount

As at April 1, 2022  1,198.06 

Add: issue/cancellation of shares consequent to amalgamation  -  

As at March 31, 2023  1,198.06 

Add: issue/cancellation of shares consequent to amalgamation  -  

As at March 31, 2024  1,198.06 

C. Other equity	 (H In lakhs)

 Particulars Reserve and surplus Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Total

Security 

Premium

Capital 

reserve on 

amalgamation  

(refer note 49)

Retained 

Earnings

Equity 

instrument 

through Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Balance as at April 1, 2022  20,038.06  3,256.64  87,969.19  28.35  1,11,292.24 

Profit for the year  -   -  8,592.40  -   8,592.40 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)  -   -   1.19  1.62  2.81 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -   -   8,593.59  1.62  8,595.21 

Balance as at March 31, 2023  20,038.06  3,256.64  96,562.78  29.97  1,19,887.45 

Profit for the year  -   -  8,692.50  -   8,692.50 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)  (6.13)  0.88  (5.25)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -   -   8,686.37  0.88  8,687.25 

Balance as at March 31, 2024  20,038.06  3,256.64  1,05,249.15  30.85  1,28,574.70 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Star Cement Meghalaya Limited

For Singhi & Co.	 Ravi Bharati	 Sajjan Bhajanka

Chartered Accountants	 Chief Financial Officer	 Director

Firm Registration No.302049E	 DIN: 00246043

Gopal Jain	 Brij Mohan Jha	 Tushar Bhajanka

Partner 	 Company Secretary	 Director

Membership No. 059147	 DIN: 09179632

Place : Kolkata/Lumshnong						    

Date : May 22, 2024
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Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024	

 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended 

March 31, 2023

A Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax  11,060.60  13,334.38 

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expenses  6,162.91  5,361.88 

Depreciation on right-of-use assets  42.89  40.51 

Provision for Obsolence on inventory  28.30  13.28 

Liabilities/Provisions no longer required written back  (160.32)  (550.29)

(Profit)/ loss on sale of property, plant and equipment  46.96  (19.70)

Interest income  (1,979.17)  (2,400.31)

Finance costs  219.21  89.67 

Allowance for doubtful trade receivables  11.35  -  

Operating profit before working capital changes  15,432.73  15,869.42 

Adjustments for :

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  (3,825.26)  2,401.41 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories  735.78  (10,791.26)

(Increase)/ decrease in other assets  2,665.52  (3,562.30)

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  (579.63)  (2,105.62)

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities and provisions  60.09  5,110.49 

Cash generated from operations  14,489.23  6,922.14 

Income tax paid (net of refunds)  (1,865.94)  (2,255.54)

Net cashflow from operating Activities  12,623.29  4,666.60 

B Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including CWIP)  (2,776.76)  (12,137.40)

Sale of property, plant and equipment  30.73  167.37 

Loan given/(repaid)  (26,137.00)  4,305.00 

Redemption/(investments) in fixed deposits/margin money (net)  9,831.97  6,381.57 

(Purchase)/ sale of investments (net)  10,331.92  (6,655.27)

Investment in associates  (3,200.00)  -  

Interest received  2,727.28  1,794.03 

Net cash used in investing activities  (9,191.84)  (6,144.70)

C Cash low from financing activities

Proceeds from /(repayment of) short term borrowings (net)  (1,711.89)  1,630.68 

Finance cost paid  (195.33)  (66.98)

Payment of lease liabilities (including interest)  (56.40)  (55.31)

Net cash flow from financing activities  (1,963.62)  1,508.39 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  1,467.83  30.29 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  330.00  299.71 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,797.83  330.00 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.	 For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Star Cement Meghalaya Limited

For Singhi & Co.	 Ravi Bharati	 Sajjan Bhajanka
Chartered Accountants	 Chief Financial Officer	 Director
Firm Registration No.302049E	 DIN: 00246043

Gopal Jain	 Brij Mohan Jha	 Tushar Bhajanka
Partner 	 Company Secretary	 Director
Membership No. 059147	 DIN: 09179632

Place : Kolkata/Lumshnong						    
Date : May 22, 2024

Notes :

1.	 The above statement of cash flow has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting 

Standard (Ind AS-7).

2. 	 For the purpose of statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprises the followings:	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Cash on hand  8.50  42.76 

Cheques on hand  133.47  111.15 

Balance with banks  1,655.86  176.09 

 1,797.83  330.00 

3. 	 Figures for the previous years have been regrouped wherever considered necessary.				 

4. 	 Income tax paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing 

activities.

5. 	 As per Ind AS 7, the Company is required to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate 

changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash 

changes. The Company did not have any material impact on account of these changes in the Statement of Cash Flows, 

therefore such reconciliation has not been given.	
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.	 Corporate Information
	 Star Cement Meghalaya Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated on 

December 22, 2005 as per the provisions of the Companies Act. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and 

selling of cement clinker, cement and power along with services of domestic transportation of goods. The manufacturing 

units are located at Lumshnong, Meghalaya. The Company is selling its product across northeastern and eastern states 

of India.

B.	 Statement of Compliance
	 The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 

AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and 

presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

	 These standalone Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of 

Directors on May 22, 2024.

C.	 New Accounting Pronouncements
(i)	 Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

(a)	 Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

	 The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting 

policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques 

and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments had no impact on the Company’s standalone 

financial statements. 

(b)	 Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

	 The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing 

the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their 

‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making 

decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s 

disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in 

the Company’s financial statements.

(c)	 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12 

	 The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer 

applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases. The 

amendment had no impact on the Company’s standalone financial statements.

(ii)	 Application of New Amendments Issued but Not Yet Effective

	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has not notified any new Ind AS or amendments to the existing Ind AS which 

are effective from 1st April, 2024.

D.	 Material Accounting Policies

(i)	 Basis of Preparation & Presentation

	 The accounting policies are consistently followed by the Company and changes in accounting policy are separately 

disclosed.

(a)	 Historical Cost Convention

	 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

• 	 Net defined benefit asset/liability which is measured at Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined 

benefit obligations

• 	 Investment in bonds is measured at amortised cost.

• 	 Investment in equity shares, other than investment in subsidiaries is measured at fair value.

• 	 Certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value / amortized cost.

(b)	 Current and non-current classification

	 The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current / Non-Current 

classification of its Assets and Liabilities. 
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	 For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if: 

(i)	 It is expected to be realized, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or

(ii)	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

(iii)	 It is expected to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv)	 The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

	 All other assets are classified as non-current.

	 Similarly, a liability is classified as current if: 

(i)	 It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or 

(ii)	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

(iii)	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

(iv)	 The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period. Terms of liability that could result in its settlement by the issue of equity 

instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification. 

	 All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent 

only.

(c)	 Rounding off amounts

(i)	 The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company 

and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. 

(ii)	 Figures have been rounded off in decimals to the nearest Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated. All 

amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off in decimals to the nearest 

lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

(ii)	 Use of Estimates

	 The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation 

requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 which require management to make estimates 

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities 

as at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although these 

estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ 

from these estimates.

	 Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to 

the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

	 Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

	 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period 

of the revision and future period, if the revision affects current and future period. Revisions in estimates are reflected 

in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements.

	 The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by 

definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that may have a significant risk 

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 

summarised below:

a)	 Classification of legal matters and tax litigation

	 Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of 

contingencies/ claims/ litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending 

matters with accuracy.

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd....)



Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report 2023-24  |  35

Notes to the Financial Statements (Contd...)

b)	 Defined benefit obligations

	 The cost of defined benefit plan and present value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuation. 

An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in 

the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and 

attrition rate. Due to the long- term nature of the plan, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. All 

assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

c)	 Useful life of property, plant and equipment

	 The determination of depreciation and amortization charge depends on the useful lives for which judgements 

and estimations are required. The residual values, useful lives, and method of depreciation of property, plant 

and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 

appropriate.

d)	 Leases Ind AS 116

	 The Company has exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the 

lease, together with the impact of options to extend or terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain to be 

exercised.

	 Where the implicit rate in the lease is not readily available, an incremental borrowing rate is applied. This 

incremental borrowing rate reflects the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a 

similar term, with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar nature and value to 

the right of-use asset in a similar economic environment. Determination of the incremental borrowing rate 

requires estimation.

e)	 Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

	 When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 

measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques 

including the Discounted Cash Flow model / Adjusted Net Assets Value method. The inputs to these models 

are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is 

required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk 

and volatility.

f)	 Physical verification of Inventory

	 Bulk inventory for the Company primarily comprises of coal, fly ash and clinker which are primarily used 

during the production process at the manufacturing locations. Determination of physical quantities of bulk 

inventories is done based on volumetric measurements and involves special considerations with respect to 

physical measurement, density calculation, moisture, etc. which involve estimates / judgments.

g)	 Deferred Tax Assets 

	 The recognition of deferred tax assets requires assessment of whether it is probable that sufficient future 

taxable profit will be available against which deferred tax asset can be utilized. The Company reviews at each 

balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets.

(iii)	 Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

	 Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Company’s standalone financial 

statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the Company’s functional currency.

	 Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing 

on the date of the transactions. Exchange differences arising on settlement /restatement of short–term foreign 

currency monetary assets and liabilities of the company are recognized as income or expenses in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net 

basis within other income or other expenses.

	 Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated 

to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets 

and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate 

prevalent at the date of transaction.

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd....)
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(iv)	 Property, plant and equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, installation or construction (net of any 

recoverable amount, wherever applicable) less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses if 

any, except freehold land which is carried at cost. Cost comprises the purchase price, installation and attributable 

cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

	 Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 

Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When significant parts of plant and equipment are 

required to be replaced the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other 

repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they 

are incurred.

	 Capital Work in Progress

	 Capital work in progress is carried at cost and includes any directly attributable cost incurred during construction 

period.

	 Property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use as on the balance sheet date are disclosed as 

“Capital work-in-progress”. Such items are classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment 

when completed and ready for their intended use. Advances given towards acquisition/ construction of property, 

plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other non-

current assets”

	 Expenditure during construction period

	 In case of new projects and substantial expansion of existing units, expenditure incurred including trial production 

expenses net of revenue earned, and attributable interest and financing costs, prior to commencement of 

commercial production/completion of project are capitalised.

	 Depreciation 

	 Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided on Written Down Value (WDV) method in accordance 

with the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 and considering the useful lives for computing 

depreciation specified in Part ‘C’ thereof or as reassessed by the company based on technical evaluation except in 

case of following: 

•	 Mines development expenses incurred on free hold mining land are depreciated in proportion of actual quantity 

of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable mineral reserves. 

	 Depreciation is provided on components that have homogenous useful lives. In respect of an asset for which 

impairment loss is recognized, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its 

remaining useful life. Depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end 

and adjusted if appropriate. Estimated useful lives so determined are as follows:

Assets Useful Lives

Buildings and roads 3 - 60 years

Plant and machinery 2 - 40 years

Furniture and office equipment 3 - 10 years

Tools and tackles 2 -10 years

Vehicles 2 - 15 years

Computer 3 - 6 years

	 Derecognition of property plant and equipment 

	 An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal 

or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 

of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 

is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

(v)	 Intangible Asset

	 An intangible asset is recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the 

asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd....)
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	 Amortization of intangible assets

	 The amortization amount of an intangible asset is allocated over its estimated useful life. Expenditure on purchased 

software and IT related expenditure is written off over a period of three years.

	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment 

based on internal / external factors. An impairment loss will be recognized wherever the carrying amount of an 

asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in 

use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present value by using weighted 

average cost of capital. A previously recognized impairment loss is further provided or reversed depending on 

changes in circumstances.

(vi)	 Research and Development Expenditure

	 Research expenditure is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. Development costs are capitalised only after 

the technical and commercial feasibility of the asset for sale or use has been established. Thereafter, all directly 

attributable expenditure incurred to prepare the asset for its intended use are recognised as the cost of such assets. 

(vii)	 Lease-

	 As a Lessee: 

	 The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases 

and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use 

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

	 The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying 

asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the 

amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, an estimate of costs to be incurred in dismantling 

and removing or restoring the underlying asset and lease payments made at or before the commencement date 

less any lease incentives received. After the commencement date, the Right of use assets are measured applying 

the Cost model. They are subsequently measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, adjustments for any 

remeasurement of the lease liabilities and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line 

basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

	 At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value 

of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in 

substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or 

a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

	 In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the 

lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the 

commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for 

the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, 

a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a 

change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to 

purchase the underlying asset.

	 As a Lessor: 

	 Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to 

compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance 

sheet based on their nature.

	 Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from 

the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the 

Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a 

constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease. Operating lease payments 

are recognised as an income in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless 

the receipt from lessee is structured to increase in line with expected general inflation and compensate for the 

lessor’s expected inflation cost increase.

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd....)
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(viii)	 Government Grants and Subsidies

	 Government grants and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable certainty that the same will be received. 

Revenue grants in the nature of recoupment/ reimbursement of any particular item of expenses are recognized 

in the Statement of Profit and Loss as deduction from related item of expenditure. Grants related to assets which 

are recognized in the Balance Sheet as deferred income, are recognized to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a 

systematic basis over the useful life of the related assets by netting off with the related expense.

(ix)	 Inventories

	 Raw materials, stores and spare parts, fuel and packing material: 

	 Raw materials, stores and spares and fuel and packing material are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Cost includes purchase price, other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, 

and taxes for which credit is not available. However, materials and other items held for use in the production 

of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are 

expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

	 Work-in-progress, finished goods and stock in trade: 

	 Work-in-progress, finished goods and stock in trade are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 

includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating 

capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost of Stock-in-trade includes cost of purchase and other cost incurred 

in bringing the inventories to the present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. 

	 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(x)	 Investment in Subsidiaries

	 The Company’s investments in its subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down 

immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries or the loss of significant influence 

over associates, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the 

statement of profit and loss.

a)	 Investments and other financial assets

	 Classification

	 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

•	 those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit 

or loss), and 

•	 those measured at amortised cost

	 The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 

terms of cash flows. 

	 Measurement

	 At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of financial assets 

carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

	 Debt instruments

	 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the 

asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The company classifies its debt instruments into the following 

categories:

•	 Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent 

solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial 

assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

•	 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collections of contractual cash 

flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and 

interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Interest income from these 

financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd....)
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•	 Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are 

measured at fair value through profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other 

income.

	 Equity instruments

	 The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (except subsidiary, associate and joint venture) at fair 

value through profit or loss. However, where the Company’s management makes an irrevocable choice on initial 

recognition to present fair value gains and losses on specific equity investments in other comprehensive income, 

there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. 

	 Impairment of financial assets 

	 The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend, industry 

practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment 

methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

	 Derecognition of financial assets

	  A financial asset is derecognised only when

•	 The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or

•	 Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation 

to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

	 Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the 

financial asset is not derecognised.

	 Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of 

ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the company has not retained control of the 

financial asset.

(xi)	 Trade receivables

	 Trade receivables that do not contain any significant financing component are recognized initially at transaction price. 

Upon initial recognition of a receivable from a contract with a customer, any difference between the measurement 

of the receivable in accordance with Ind AS 109 and the corresponding amount of revenue recognised shall be 

presented as an expense. Subsequently, the trade receivables are measured at cost less expected credit losses. 

The Company calculates the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix on the basis of its 

historical credit loss experience. The Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 – Financial 

Instruments for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 

lifetime expected credit losses.

(xii)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and demand deposits with 

banks and other short-term highly liquid investments/deposits that are readily convertible into cash which are 

subject to insignificant risk of changes in value with an original maturity of three months or less.

(xiii)	 Financial liabilities 

	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 The Company recognises all the financial liabilities on initial recognition at fair value minus, in the case of a financial 

liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 

issue of the financial liability.

	 The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

	 Subsequent measurement

	 All the financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for those measured at 

fair value through profit or loss.

	 De-recognition of financial liabilities

	 The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, 

cancelled or they expire.

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd....)
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(xiv)	 Borrowings

	 Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 

amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 

	 Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 

cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished 

or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 

assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

	 Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement 

of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a 

long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes 

payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, 

after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as 

a consequence of the breach.

(xv)	 Borrowing Costs

	 Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset is capitalized 

as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that 

necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are 

recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost includes exchange differences 

arising from relevant foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to the 

interest cost.

(xvi)	 Trade and other payables

	 These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company prior to the end of financial 

year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and 

other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting 

period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method.

(xvii)	 Business Combination and Goodwill

	 The company applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration 

transferred by the company to obtain control of a business is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair 

values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the company, which includes 

the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are 

expensed as incurred. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their acquisition date fair 

values.

	 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of 

impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the combination date, allocated to each 

of the company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether 

other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

	 Business Combination Common control business combination where the Company is transferee, is accounted for 

using the pooling of interest method. Assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying 

amounts and no new asset or liability is recognised other than those adjustments that are made to harmonise 

accounting policies. Identity of reserves of the transferor company is preserved by reflecting them in the same 

form in the Company’s financial statements in which they appeared in the financial statement of the transferor 

company. The excess between the amounts of consideration paid over the share capital of the transferor company 

is recognised and disclosed as capital reserve on business combination. 

	 The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated from the beginning of the 

preceding period in the financial statements if the business combination date is prior to that date. However, if the 

business combination date is after that date, the financial information in the financial statements is restated from 

the date of business combination.

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd....)
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(xviii)	Offsetting financial instruments

	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the 

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 

and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of 

the Company or the counterparty.

(xix)	 Revenue Recognition

(A) 	 Sale of Goods 

	 The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 

future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s 

activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration 

the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specific of each arrangement.

	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when control of the products being sold is transferred to the 

customer and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The Performance Obligations in sales 

contracts are fulfilled at the time of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending on 

terms with customers.

	 Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net 

of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and 

services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by 

the Company as part of the contract. This variable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of 

outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that 

the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved.

	 Transaction price is the amount of consideration in the contract to which the Company expects to be entitled 

in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services.

	 The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between transfer of promised goods or 

services to the customer and payment by customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does 

not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

(B) 	 Sale of Services 

	 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when the performance of service is completed for 

the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled 

in exchange for those services. Revenue from goods transportation services is recognized at the point in 

time when performance of service is completed for the customer, generally when goods and documents are 

delivered.

(C) 	Sale of Power

	 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on supply of power to the customers at an amount 

that reflects the consideration to which the company is entitled as per the contract executed with respective 

customers and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived 

from the sale of power.

	 Sale of power is billed monthly with specified due dates and accounted for at rates agreed with respective 

customers

	 Contract balances 

	 Trade Receivables and Contract Assets

	 A trade receivable is recognized when the products are delivered to a customer and consideration becomes 

unconditional. Contract assets are recognized when the company has a right to receive consideration that is 

conditional other than the passage of time. 

	 Contract Liabilities 

	 Contract liabilities is a Company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer which the entity has 

already received consideration. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the company performs 

under the contract.

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd....)
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(D) 	Other Income

	 Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

	 Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, 

by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 

exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s 

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

	 Dividend income is recognized when right to receive dividend is established (provided that it is probable that 

the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

(xx)	 Employee Benefits

(i)	 Short-term obligations

	 Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 

12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised 

in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts 

expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(ii) 	 Defined Contribution Plan

	 Employees benefits in the form of provident fund, ESIC and other labour welfare fund are considered as 

defined contribution plan and the contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year 

when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

(iii)	 Defined Benefit Plan

	 Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity is considered as defined benefits obligations and are provided for on 

the basis of an actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the Balance Sheet date

	 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 

are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and transferred to 

retained earnings.

(iv)	 Other Long-term benefits

	 Long-term compensated absences are provided for on the actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit 

method, as at the Balance Sheet date. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments 

and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, in the statement of 

Profit or Loss.

(xxi)	 Tax Expenses

	 Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Provision for the current tax is made on the basis of taxable 

income for the current accounting year in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. 

	 Deferred tax is computed on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 

their carrying amounts in the standalone financial statements. Deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the 

transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred tax is determined using tax rates 

(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to 

apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. 

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 

probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

	 Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of 

investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where the company is able 

to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not 

reverse in the foreseeable future. 

	 Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of 

investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable 

that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the 

temporary difference can be utilised. 

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd....)
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	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 

and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax 

liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net 

basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

	 Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that they relate 

to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the taxes are recognised in 

other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

	 The deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which originate during the tax holiday period and is likely to 

reverse during the tax holiday period, is not recognized to the extent income is subject to deduction during the tax 

holiday period as per the requirements of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

	 Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing 

evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each 

Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer 

convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

(xxii)	 Earnings Per Share

	 Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before other comprehensive income for 

the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 

the period. 

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before other comprehensive income 

for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 

the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(xxiii)	Provisions and Contingencies

	 A Provision is recognized for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions 

are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 

obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax 

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 

The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Liabilities which are 

material and whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are treated as contingent and 

disclosed by way of notes to the accounts. Contingent assets are also disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

(xxiv)	Mines Restoration provisions

	 An obligation for restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental disturbance 

is caused by the development or ongoing extraction from mines. Costs arising from restoration at closure of 

the mines and other site preparation work are provided for based on their discounted net present value, with a 

corresponding amount being capitalised at the start of each project. The amount provided for is recognised, as 

soon as the obligation to incur such costs arises. These costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over 

the life of the operation through the depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the discount on the provision. 

The costs are reviewed periodically and are adjusted to reflect known developments which may have an impact on 

the cost or life of operations. The cost of the related asset is adjusted for changes in the provision due to factors 

such as updated cost estimates, new disturbance and revisions to discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is 

depreciated prospectively over the lives of the assets to which they relate. The unwinding of the discount is shown 

as a finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(xxv)	 Segment reporting

	 An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn 

revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s Chief Operating 

Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available. Based on the 

management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates 

resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

NOTE 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd....)
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Note 2.2- Capital work-in-progress	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year  17,566.44  5,159.29 

Add : expenditure incurred during the year  1,953.93  13,578.38 

Less : capitalised during the year  (18,025.11)  (1,171.23)

Less : transfer to stores inventory/ others  (105.74)  -  

Balance at the end of the year  1,389.52  17,566.44 

Ageing of Capital work-in-progress	 (H in lakhs)

Particulars  Amount in Capital Work in Progress for a period of

 Less than 1 

year 

 1 - 2 years  2-3 years  More than 3 

years 

 Total 

At March 31, 2024

Projects in progress  1,041.02  192.88  0.24  155.38  1,389.52 

Projects temporarily suspended  -   -   -   -   -  

At March 31, 2023

Projects in progress  16,357.59  878.49  17.69  312.67  17,566.44 

Projects temporarily suspended  -   -   -   -   -  

Notes:

(a)	 There is no project whose cost has exceeded its budget or has overrun its completion time at each reporting date.

(b)	 During the year, the Company has incurred directly attributable expenditure related to acquisition/ construction 

of Property, plant and equipment / Capital work-in-progress and therefore accounted for the same as pre-operative 

expenses under capital work-in-progress.

	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year included in capital work-in-progress:  865.83  210.64 

Add: Expenses incurred during the year

Power and fuel  75.61  112.56 

Employee benefit expenses  3.78  72.03 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses  5.41  56.15 

Heavy vehicle/equipment running expenses  2.11  136.93 

Finance costs (refer note 34.1)  8.38  48.03 

Consumption of stores & spares  0.45  2.73 

Miscellanous expenses (refer note below)  36.49  226.76 

Less: Capitalised during the year  (995.61)  -  

Balance at the end of the year included in capital work-in-progress  2.45  865.83 

Note: Miscellanous expenses includes insurance, professional consultancy etc.
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Note 2.3- Right-of-use assets 	 (H in lakhs)

Particulars Non Factory 

Building

Leasehold  

Land

Total

Gross carrying value

At April 1, 2022  303.43  -   303.43 

Additions during the year  6.62  24.94  31.56 

Disposal during the year  -   -   -  

At March 31, 2023  310.05  24.94  334.99 

Additions during the year  11.74  -   11.74 

Disposal during the year  0.52  -   0.52 

At March 31, 2024  321.27  24.94  346.21 

Accumulated Deprecation

At April 1, 2022  30.38  -   30.38 

Charge for the year  41.32  0.86  42.18 

Disposal during the year  -   -   -  

At March 31, 2023  71.70  0.86  72.56 

Charge for the year  37.95  4.94  42.89 

Disposal during the year  0.51  -   0.51 

At March 31, 2024  109.14  5.80  114.94 

Net Carrying Value

At March 31, 2023  238.35  24.08  262.43 

At March 31, 2024  212.13  19.14  231.27 

Note 2.4- Intangible assets 	 (H in lakhs)

Particulars Intangible 

Assets

Gross Carrying Value

At April 1, 2022  13.72 

Addition during the year  0.21 

Disposal during the year  -  

At March 31, 2023  13.93 

Addition during the year  -  

Disposal during the year  -  

At March 31, 2024  13.93 

Accumulated Deprecation

At April 1, 2022  10.54 

Charge for the year  1.46 

Disposal during the year  -  

At March 31, 2023  12.00 

Charge for the year  1.20 

Disposal during the year  -  

At March 31, 2024  13.20 

Net Carrying Value

At March 31, 2023  1.93 

At March 31, 2024  0.73 
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Note 3- Investment in associates	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Investment in equity shares at cost - unquoted shares

Star Cement (I) Limited  2.00  2.00 

20,000 (20,000 as at March 31, 2023) equity shares of H10/- each fully paid up

Star Cement North East Limited  4,002.00  2.00 

40,20,000 (20,000 as at March 31, 2023) equity shares of H10/- each fully paid up

 4,004.00  4.00 

Notes 

3.1: Refer note 47 for transactions with related party

3.2 Details of Associates in accordance with INDAS 112 “Disclousers of Interest in other entity”

Name of the Associates

Country of 

Incorporation

Proportion of ownership interest/ 

voting right held by the Company

As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Star Cement North East Limited India 40% 40%

Star Cement (I) Limited India 40% 40%

Note 4- Investments	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Investment in unquoted equity instruments

"Ribhoi Engineering Co. Pvt. Ltd. 

27,000 (27,000 as at March 31, 2023) Equity Share of H10/- each fully paid up"

 34.02  32.67 

 34.02  32.67 

Investment measured at amortised cost

Investment in bonds - quoted (fully paid up - face value H10 each)

9.56% State Bank of India Series 1 NCD Perpetual Bond, Nil units (31st March, 2023- 

350 units)

 -   3,571.84 

9.37% State Bank of India Series I NCD Perpetual Bond, Nil units (31st March, 2023- 

150 units)

 -   1,527.82 

9.15% ICICI Bank Series 1 NCD Perpetual Bond, Nil units (31st March, 2023- 450 units)  -   4,518.49 

9.45 % State Bank of India Series 1 NCD Perpetual Bond, Nil units (31st March, 2023- 

70 units)

 -   715.12 

 -   10,333.27 

Total  34.02  10,365.94 

Aggregate market value of quoted investments  -   10,355.60 

Aggregate carrying amount of quoted investments  -   10,333.27 

Aggregate carrying amount of unquoted investments  34.02  32.67 
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Note 5- Loans (non-current)	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated.

Loans to related parties (refer note 47)  28,775.08  2,913.08 

 28,775.08  2,913.08 

Note 5.1 : Disclosure of loans or advances to specified persons as per requirement of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

	 (H in lakhs) 

Type of Borrower

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

H in lakhs  % H in lakhs %

Promoters  -   -   -   -  

Directors  -   -   -   -  

Key Managerial Personnel  -   -   -   -  

Related Parties  28,775.08 100%  2,913.08 100%

Others  -   -   -   -  

Total  28,775.08 100%  2,913.08 100%

Note 5.2 : Disclosure of Loans and Advances given to holding company & fellow Subsidiary Company as per Regulation 34(3) 

and 53 (f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 186 of the Companies 

Act, 2013

	 (H in lakhs) 

Type of Borrower

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Loan 

outstanding  

H in lakhs

Maximum 

balance 

outstanding 

during the 

year

Rate of 

interest

Loan 

outstanding  

H in lakhs

Maximum 

balance 

outstanding 

during the 

year

Rate of 

interest

 Loan to related parties:

1) Star Cement North East Limited  21,242.00  21,387.00 8.00%  -   -   -  

2) Star Cement (I) Limited  1,915.00  1,915.00 7.66%  -   -   -  

3) Star Cement Limited  5,618.08  5,903.08 8.49%  2,913.08  7,218.08 7.19%

 28,775.08  29,205.08  2,913.08  7,218.08 

Note 5.3 : There are no outstanding loans from any directors or other officers of the Company as on the each reporting date.

Note 5.4: The above Loans have been granted for general business purpose.

Note 6- Other financial assets (non-current)	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise mentioned)

Security deposits  24.97  29.43 

Application Monies for subscription of equity shares of an associate company (refer 

note 6.1) 

 -   800.00 

Deposits with banks due to mature after twelve months from the reporting date (refer 

note 6.2) 

 43.50  4,452.09 

Interest accrued on above fixed deposits with banks due to mature after twelve 

months from the reporting date

 1.54  265.44 

 70.01  5,546.96 

Note 6.1 : The Company has applied for equity shares in one of its associate company i.e Star Cement North East Limited 
(SCNEL) which was subsequently allotted to the Company on April 26,2023.

Note 6.2 : Fixed deposits with banks includes fixed deposits of H43.50 lakhs (March 31, 2023: H177.09 lakhs) which have been 
held as margin money with banks against bank guarantees taken by the company.
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Note 7- Deferred tax assets (net) 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Assets (A)

On MAT credit entitlement  10,254.72  12,049.49 

On provision for employee benefits  78.43  55.45 

On carry forward losses under Income Tax Act, 1961  -   246.56 

Others  93.91  -  

 10,427.06  12,351.50 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (B)

On temporary differences related to property, plant and equipment & intangible assets  311.16  1,822.03 

Others  -   4.77 

 311.16  1,826.80 

Deferred Tax Assets (net) (A-B)  10,115.90  10,524.70 

Note 7.1 : Movement in deferred tax assets 	 (H in lakhs)

Particulars Provision 

for 

employee 

benefits

Carry 

forward 

losses

Property, 

plant and 

equipment 

and 

intangible 

assets

MAT Credit 

entitlement

 Others  Total 

As at April 1, 2022 26.84 412.55  (1,779.17) 14268.07  -  12,928.29 

(Charged)/credited:

- to Statement of profit and loss  27.87  (165.99)  (42.86)  (2,218.58)  (4.77)  (2,404.33)

- to Other comprehensive income 0.74  -  -  -  -  0.74 

As at March 31, 2023  55.45  246.56  (1,822.03)  12,049.49  (4.77)  10,524.70 

(Charged)/credited:

- to Statement of profit and loss (refer note 

7.3 and 7.5)

 19.68  (246.56)  1,510.87  (1,794.77)  99.15  (411.63)

- to Other comprehensive income  3.30  - - -  (0.47)  2.83 

As at March 31, 2024  78.43  -  (311.16)  10,254.72  93.91  10,115.90 

Note 7.2 : The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Based on the management 

estimate regarding the future projection, the Company expects to have sufficient future taxable profits against which above 

deferred tax asset shall be realized.

Note 7.3 : The Company has recognised deferred tax asset on certain tax allowances related to earlier years amounting to 

H30.83 lakhs under Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note 7.4 : Section 115 BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 gives a one-

time irreversible option for payment of income tax at reduced rate with effect from financial year commencing 1st April, 2019 

subject to certain conditions. The Company has made an assessment of the impact of the above amendment and decided 

to continue with the existing tax structure until utilisation of accumulated minimum alternative tax (“MAT”). The company 

shall, however, continue to review its profitability forecast at regular intervals and shall carry out necessary remeasurement 

adjustments to deferred tax/liabilities as per Ind As -12 “ Income Taxes” upon assessment of reasonable certainty to avail the 

option under section 115 BAA.

Note 7.5 : Deferred tax expenses charged to statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 includes 

H1930.59 lakhs towards deferred tax assets recognised by the company on timing difference in respect of property, plant and 

equipment which was not recognised earlier considering the tax holiday period as a matter of prudence. The same has been 

recognised based on the profitability projection of the company and management is confident to utilise the same against the 

taxable profits in future periods.
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Note 9- Other non-current assets 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Unsecured considered good

Capital advances  522.74  1,813.92 

 Deposit with statutory/government authorities  234.56  34.56 

 Others  -   0.42 

 757.30  1,848.90 

Note 9.1: Capital advances includes advance against land of H 414.73 lakhs (March 31, 2023 - H1,803.15 lakhs).

Note 10- Inventories 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Raw materials  1,356.63  591.60 

Work in Progress  54.04  229.76 

Finished goods (including in transit as on March 31, 2024 -H Nil and March 31, 2023 -H 

426.51 lakhs) 

 1,086.56  1,344.97 

Fuels (including in transit as at March 31, 2024 -H 64.67 lakhs and March 31, 2023 - Nil)  14,147.95  15,252.70 

Packing materials  1.52  1.52 

Stores & spares (Refer Note 10.1)  3,392.51  3,382.74 

 20,039.21  20,803.29 

Note 10.1 : The Company follows provisioning norms for writing down the value of inventories towards slow moving, non-

moving and obsolete inventory. Provision for obsolescence of stores and spares as on March 31, 2024 is H 41.58 lakhs (March 

31, 2023 – H 13.28 lakhs). There has been no reversal of such write down in current and previous year.	

Note 10.2 : Finished goods includes power inventory with MePDCL of H 154.03 lakhs (March 31, 2023: H 154.48 lakhs)

Note 11- Trade receivables 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Trade receivables considered good-secured  30.44  30.44 

Trade receivables considered good-unsecured  10,138.04  6,312.78 

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  100.84  100.84 

Trade receivables -credit impaired  -   -  

 10,269.32  6,444.06 

Less: Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables  (100.84)  (89.49)

 10,168.48  6,354.57 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 8- Non- current tax assets (net)	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net) 				     954.94  948.78 

 954.94  948.78 
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Note 11- Trade receivables (contd...)

Ageing of outstanding trade receivables as on March 31, 2024 from due date of payment 	 (H in lakhs)

Particulars Un-

billed

Not Due Less 

than 6 

months

6 months 

- 1 year

1 - 2 

years

2 - 3 

years

More 

than 3 

years

Total

Undisputed Receivables

 - Considered Good  -  9,946.44  190.33  0.33  0.19  -   0.75 10,138.04 

 - Significant increase in credit risk  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

 - Credit Impaired  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Receivables

 - Considered Good  -   -   -   -   -   -   30.44  30.44 

 - Significant increase in credit risk  -   -   -   -   -   14.72  86.12  100.84 

 - Credit Impaired  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

 -  9,946.44  190.33  0.33  0.19  14.72  117.31 10,269.32 

Less: Allowance for credit losses  (100.84)

Total Trade Receivables  -  9,946.44  190.33  0.33  0.19  14.72  117.31 10,168.48 

Ageing of outstanding trade receivables as on March 31, 2023 from due date of payment 	 (H in lakhs)

Particulars Un-

billed

Not Due Less 

than 6 

months

6 months 

- 1 year

1 - 2 

years

2 - 3 

years

More 

than 3 

years

Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables

 - Considered Good  609.62  5,680.57  19.44  2.40  -   -   0.75  6,312.78 

 - Significant increase in credit risk  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

 - Credit Impaired  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Trade Receivables

 - Considered Good  -   -   -   -   -   -   30.44  30.44 

 - Significant increase in credit risk  -   -   -   -   14.72  -   86.12  100.84 

 - Credit Impaired  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Total  609.62  5,680.57  19.44  2.40  14.72  -   117.31  6,444.06 

Less: Allowance for credit losses 

on trade receivables

 (89.49)

Total Trade Receivables  609.62  5,680.57  19.44  2.40  14.72  -   117.31  6,354.57 

Note 11.1 : There are no unbilled receivables at each reporting date.

Note 11.2 : No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company, either severally or jointly with any 

other person. Further no trade receivables are due from firms or private companies, respectively in which any director is a 

partner, a director or a member.

Note 12- Cash and cash equivalents 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Cash on hand  8.50  42.76 

Cheques on hand  133.47  111.15 

Balance with banks:

- In current accounts/cash credit accounts  1,655.86  176.09 

 1,797.83  330.00 
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Note 13- Other bank balances 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Fixed deposits with banks with remaining maturity of less than 12 months (refer note 13.1)  4,478.39  9,901.77 

 4,478.39  9,901.77 

Note 13.1: Fixed Deposits with banks includes fixed deposits of H 203.54 lakhs (March 31, 2023 H 52.77 lakhs) which have been 

held as margin money with banks against bank guarantees taken by the company.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 14- Loans (current) 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Unsecured - Considered good (unless otherwise stated)

Loans to body corporate (other than related parties)  325.00  50.00 

 325.00  50.00 

Note 14.1 : Disclosure of loans or advances to specified persons as per requirement of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

	 (H in lakhs) 

Type of Borrower

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

H in lakhs  % H in lakhs %

Promoters  -   -   -   -  

Directors  -   -   -   -  

Key managerial personnel  -   -   -   -  

Related parties  -   -   -   -  

Others  325.00 100%  50.00 100%

Total  325.00 100%  50.00 100%

Note 14.2 : Disclosure of loans and advances section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013	 (H in lakhs) 

Type of Borrower

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Loan 

outstanding  

(H in lakhs)

Maximum 

balance 

outstanding 

during the 

year

Rate of 

interest

Loan 

outstanding  

(H in lakhs)

Maximum 

balance 

outstanding 

during the 

year

Rate of 

interest

Loan to others:

1) 	 Shyam Trade & Finance Pvt. Ltd.  275.00  500.00 9%  -   -   -  

2) 	 Goodview Agencies Pvt. Ltd.  50.00  50.00 10%  50.00  63.71 10.00%

3) 	 Lalwani Ferro Alloys Limited  -   -   -   -   200.00 10.00%

4) 	 Saburi Panels Private Limited  -   -   -   -   100.00 10.00%

5) 	 Subham Capital Pvt Limited  -   -   -   -   1,000.00 8.50%

6) 	 Suhag Overseas Trading Private 

Limited

 -   -   -   -   135.00 8.50%

7) 	 Tiru Complex LLP  -   -   -   -   250.00 10.00%

 325.00  550.00  50.00  1,748.71 

Note 14.3 : There are no outstanding loans from any directors or other officers of the Company as on the each reporting date.

Note 14.4: The above Loans have been granted for general business purpose.
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Note 15- Other financial assets (current) 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise mentioned)

Security deposits  15.40  17.57 

Interest accrued but not due on:

- Fixed deposits  496.60  481.28 

- Loans  33.88  63.04 

- Bonds  -   470.38 

Subsidies and incentives receivable  85.93  686.30 

 631.81  1,718.57 

Note 16- Other current assets 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise mentioned)

Advances for supply of goods and services  6,463.60  8,488.86 

Advances to employees  32.02  39.74 

Balances with statutory/government authorities  205.33  339.44 

Prepaid expenses  294.93  285.63 

Unsecured, considered doubtful:

Doubtful advances for supply of goods and services  10.01  10.28 

Less: Allowance for bad & doubtful advances  (10.01)  (10.28)

 6,995.88  9,153.67 

Note: 17A Equity share capital 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Authorised Capital

3,00,00,000 (3,00,00,000 as at March 31, 2023) equity shares of H10/- each fully paid  3,000.00  3,000.00 

 3,000.00  3,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid -up shares

2,60,88,656 (2,60,88,656 as at March 31, 2023) equity shares of H10/- each fully paid  2,608.86  2,608.86 

 2,608.86  2,608.86 

a)	 Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

	 The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of H 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity shares is 

entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the 

Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case 

of interim dividend.

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of 

the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity 

shares held by the shareholders.
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b)	 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

No. of Shares No. of Shares

At the beginning of the year  2,60,88,656.00  2,60,88,656.00 

Movement during the year  -   -  

At the end of the year  2,60,88,656.00  2,60,88,656.00 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

c)	 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity share capital

Name of the Shareholders

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No of shares % of holding No of shares % of holding

Star Cement Limited, holding company 

(including nominee shareholders)

 2,60,88,656 100.00%  2,60,88,656 100.00%

d)	  Details of shares held by the promoters at the end of the year	 (H in lakhs)

Sl. 

No. Promoter Name

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 % Change 

during the yearNo. of Shares % of Shares No. of Shares % of Shares

1 Star Cement Limited, holding 

company (including nominee 

shareholders)

 2,60,88,656 100.00%  2,60,88,656 100.00%  -  

Note:

(i) 	 The above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership based on the records of the Company, 

including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial 

interest. 

(ii) 	 By virtue of scheme of amalgamation, as referred in note 49, shares held by Megha Technical & Engineers Private 

Limited (MTEPL) shall be deemed to be cancelled without any further act or deed.

e)	 No ordinary shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/

disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

f)	 No securities convertible into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the Company during the year.

g)	 No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year

h)	 During the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:						    

	 - no shares were issued for consideration other than cash						    

	 - no bonus shares were issued						    

	 - no shares were bought back

Note 17B. Equity share suspense (refer note 49) 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

1,19,80,569 equity shares of H10 each pending to be issued under amalgamation 

scheme (March 31, 2023: 1,19,80,569 equity shares of H10 each)

 1,198.06  1,198.06 

 1,198.06  1,198.06 
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Note 18- Other equity	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Security Premium

Opening Balance  20,038.06 20038.06

Movement during the year  -   -  

Closing Balance  20,038.06 20038.06

Capital Reserve on amalgamation (refer note 49)

Opening Balance  3,256.64  3,256.64 

Movement during the year  -   -  

Closing Balance  3,256.64  3,256.64 

Retained Earnings

Opening balance  96,562.78  87,969.19 

Profit for the year  8,692.50  8,592.40 

Other comprehensive income:

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (net of tax)  (6.13)  1.19 

 8,686.37  8,593.59 

Closing balance  1,05,249.15  96,562.78 

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 

Opening balance  29.97  28.35 

Recognised during the year  0.88  1.62 

 30.85  29.97 

Total other equity  1,28,574.70  1,19,887.45 

Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities premium

Securities Premium represents the amount received in excess of par value of securities and is available for utilisation as 

specified under section 52 of Companies Act, 2013.

Capital Reserve on amalgamation:			 

The reserve has been created on account of amalgamation of Meghalaya Power Limited(MPL), Megha Technical & Engineers 

Private Limited (MTEPL) & NE Hills Hydro Private limited (NEHL) with the Company.

Retained Earnings	 		

Retained earnings represents accumulated profit of the Company as on reporting date. Such profits are after adjustment of 

payment of dividend, transfer to any reserves and adjustment for remeasurement Gain/loss on defined benefit plan.	

Other comprehensive income

The company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments in other 

comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive 

Income. The company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity instruments are 

derecognised.

Note 19- Lease liability	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Lease liabilities- non current portion  213.64  240.55 

 213.64  240.55 
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Note 21- Other non current liabilities	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Deferred government grant (refer note 21.1)  617.58  723.29 

 617.58  723.29 

Note 20- Provisions	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Provisions for employee benefits 

- Gratuity (refer note 40)  99.64  58.03 

- Leave encashment  86.03  91.45 

Provision for site restoration (refer note 20.1)  61.08  41.45 

 246.75  190.93 

Note 20.1 : Provision for site restoration has been created based on present value of estimated future cash outflow of site 

restoration expenses. Movement of provisions for site restoration during the year is as under :

	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Opening balance  41.45  -  

Add: provision during the year  15.59  38.38 

Less: utilised during the year  -   -  

Add: unwinding of discount on mines restoration provision  4.04  3.07 

 61.08  41.45 

Note 21.1 : Movement of government grants	 (H in lakhs)

Particulars Opening as at 

April 1, 2023 

(Including 

current 

portion)

Recognised 

during the year 

ended March 

31, 2024

Transfer to 

Statement of 

Profit and Loss

Closing as at 

March 31, 2024 

(including 

current 

portion)

Financial assistance under Capital Investment subsidy 

clause towards the capital expenditure incurred on 

procuring & installing property, plant and equipment 

for manufacturing of power, clinker and cements 

specified under North-East Industrial and Investment 

Promotion Policy (NEIPP), 2007. The assistance is 

capitalised as cost of property, plant and equipments 

with Corresponding credit to depreciation account 

has been transferred to statement of profit and Loss 

proportionately based on useful lives of respective 

property, plant and equipments.

 851.45  -   128.16  723.29 

Note 21.2: There has been no unfulfilled conditions or any other contingencies with respect to above government grants.
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Note 22- Borrowings	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Secured borrowings

Working capital Facilities from banks - repayable on demand [refer note 22.1 and 22.2 

below]

- Cash credit  51.22  1,763.11 

 51.22  1,763.11 

Note 22.1 : Working capital facilities of H51.22 lakhs (March 31, 2023: H 1763.11 lakhs) from banks are secured by pari passu 

first charge on current assets of the Company. 								      

Note 22.2 : The rate of interest for the above borrowing ranges between 7.15% to 9.15% (March 31, 2023 - 7.07% to 8.40%)

Note 24- Trade payables	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  183.90  101.69 

Total outstanding dues of trade payable other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises

 6,228.79  7,046.91 

 6,412.69  7,148.60 

Note 23- Lease liability	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Lease Liability- current portion  36.98  35.52 

 36.98  35.52 

Ageing of outstanding trade payables as on March 31, 2024 from due date of payment 	 (H in lakhs)

Sr 

No

Particulars Unbilled 

Due

Not Due Less than 

1 year

1 - 2 

years

2 - 3 

years

More 

than 3 

years

Total

(i) Undisputed - micro and small 

enterprises

 -   183.90  -   -   -   -   183.90 

(ii) Undisputed - others  313.06  3,770.39  257.56  69.16  2.63  12.89  4,425.69 

(iii) Disputed - micro and small enterprises

(iv) Disputed dues - others  -   -   -   196.23  -   1,606.87  1,803.10 

Total  313.06 3,954.29  257.56  265.39  2.63  1,619.76  6,412.69 

Ageing of outstanding trade payables as on March 31, 2023 from due date of payment 	 (H in lakhs)

Sr 

No

Particulars Unbilled 

Due

Not Due Less than 

1 year

1 - 2 

years

2 - 3 

years

More 

than 3 

years

Total

(i) Undisputed - micro and small 

enterprises

 -   -   101.69  -   -   -   101.69 

(ii) Undisputed - others  164.78 3,647.88  1,223.31  48.46  0.21  30.66  5,115.30 

(iii) Disputed - micro and small enterprises  -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

(iv) Disputed dues - others  -   -   213.57  111.16  -   1,606.88  1,931.61 

Total  164.78 3,647.88  1,538.57  159.62  0.21  1,637.54  7,148.60 
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Note 25- Other financial liabilities	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Creditors for capital goods  65.72  343.08 

Retention money  100.21  283.39 

Security deposits  45.94  38.96 

Employees related liabilities  445.91  113.37 

Other liabilities  139.72  73.26 

 797.50  852.06 

Note 25.1: Other liabilities represents liability towards miscellaneous expenses

Note 26- Other current liabilities	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

 Statutory liabilities  2,294.01  2,797.38 

Contract liabilities- Advance from customers (refer note 26.1)  289.46  7.63 

Current portion of deferred government grant (refer note 21.1)  105.71  128.16 

 2,689.18  2,933.17 

Note 26.1: Revenue of H7.63 lakhs (March 31,2023 : H16.51 lakhs) is recognised during current financial year that was included 

in contract liabilities - advance from customers outstanding at the beginning of the year.

Note 27- Provisions	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Provisions for employee benefits 

- Gratuity (refer note 40)  30.21  24.53 

- Leave encashment  8.58  7.96 

 38.79  32.49 

Note 28- Current tax liabilities (net)	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Provision for taxation (net)  100.17  3.49 

 100.17  3.49 



60  |  Star Cement Meghalaya Limited

Note 29- Revenue from operations	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Sale of goods:

-Cement  2,153.66  2,079.88 

-Clinker  85,482.14  86,355.76 

-Power  9,049.69  6,912.18 

-Others  1,086.41  2,168.55 

Sale of services:

Fleet operating income  3,607.23  2,591.20 

 1,01,379.13  1,00,107.57 

Other Operating Income

-Sale of scrap  113.61  136.82 

-Incentives and subsidies  -   4,053.54 

 1,01,492.74  1,04,297.93 

Note 29.1 : Primary business of the company is manufacturing and sale of clinker, power, cement and rendering transportation 

services. All other activities of the company are related to its primary business. The product shelf life of cement being short, 

all sales are made at a point in time and the revenue is recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obligations which is 

typically upon dispatch/ delivery.

Note 29.2 : The company’s primary customers are its holding company and fellow subsidiary companies refer note 47 for 

related party transactions.

Note 29.3 : The Company operates within the geographical areas of India.

Note 29.4 : Sale of other products includes sale of coal, shale and other miscellaneous store items.

Note 29.5 : Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in statement of profit and loss:

	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Revenue as per contract price  1,01,379.13  1,00,107.57 

Discount and incentives  -   -  

Revenue as per statement of profit and loss  1,01,379.13  1,00,107.57 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 30- Other income	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Interest income (using effective interest rate method)

-On bank deposits  635.27  1,308.16 

-On loans  955.80  495.66 

-On bonds  349.39  596.49 

Interest income on income tax refund  38.71  -  

Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back  160.32  550.29 

Gain on sale of property,plant and equipment (net)  -   19.70 

Miscellaneous income (refer note 30.1)  91.75  140.61 

 2,231.24  3,110.91 

Note 30.1: Miscellaneous income includes refund of cement cess amounting to H Nil (March 31, 2023 : H108.22 lakhs)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

 Note 34- Finance costs	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

 Interest expense 

 -On borrowings (measured at amortised cost)  109.01  1.33 

 - On lease liabilities  19.84  19.76 

 - On unwinding of discount on site restoration provision  4.04  3.07 

 -Others  8.46  4.05 

Other borrowing costs  77.86  61.46 

 219.21  89.67 

Note 34.1 : Interest of H8.38 lakhs (March 31, 2023- H47.41 lakhs) is capitalised during the year as pre-operative expenses in 

capital work in progress. Refer note 2.2(b).

Note 34.2 : Interest on lease liabilities of Nil (March 31, 2023 - H0.62 lakhs) is capitalised during the year as pre-operative 

expenses in capital work in progress.

Note 34.3: Interest to others includes interest on Micro and small enterprise amounting to H7.75 lakhs (March 31, 2023 - H4.05 lakhs) 

Note 33- Employee benefit expenses 	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

 Salaries & wages  5,949.98  6,064.14 

 Contribution to provident fund and other funds  111.31  94.70 

 Employees welfare expenses  203.12  123.78 

 6,264.41  6,282.62 

Note 33.1 : Employee cost is inclusive of remuneration paid to directors and key management personnels (refer note 47) 

Note 33.2 : Salaries & wages expense of H 3.78 lakhs (March 31, 2023- H72.03 lakhs) related to employees deployed in project 

has been transferred to capital work-in-progress during the year.

Note 32- Changes in inventories of finished goods and work- in- progress	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Work in process

- Opening stock  229.76  278.17 

- Closing stock  54.04  229.76 

 175.72  48.41 

 Finished goods 

- Opening stock  1,344.97  1,305.54 

- Closing stock  1,086.56  1,344.97 

 258.41  (39.43)

 (Increase)/decrease  434.13  8.98 

Note 31- Cost of materials consumed	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Inventory at the beginning of the year  591.60  1,619.52 

Add: Purchases  10,430.96  7,275.30 

 11,022.56  8,894.82 

Less :Inventory at the end of the year  1,356.63  591.60 

 9,665.93  8,303.22 

Note 31.1: Refer note 46A
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Note 35- Depreciation and amortisation expenses	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Depreciation on property,plant and equipment  6,161.78  5,360.81 

Depreciation on right-of-use- assets  42.89  40.51 

Amortisation of intangible assets  1.13  1.07 

 6,205.80  5,402.39 

Note 35.1 : Depreciation on property, plant and equipments is net off amortisation of Government Grant of H 128.16 lakhs 

(31st March 2023- H156.82 lakhs) and capitalised depreciation of H5.34 lakhs (March 31, 2023 - H54.09 lakhs).

Note 35.2 : Depreciation on right-of-use- assets is net off of H Nil (31st March, 2023 - H 1.67 lakhs) which has been capitalised 

as pre-operative expenses in capital work in progress.	

Note 35.3 : Amortisation of intangible assets is net off H 0.07 lakhs (March 31, 2023 H 0.39 lakhs) which has been capitalised 

as pre-operative expenses in capital work in progress.			

Note 37- Other expenses		 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Consumption of stores & spares (refer note 37.1)  2,780.32  1,901.86 

Packing materials  71.82  86.64 

Repairs & maintenance

- Building  41.62  71.16 

- Plant & machinery  633.53  406.75 

- Others  122.64  131.22 

Heavy vehicle / equipment running expenses  1,121.84  1,756.40 

Rent  5.46  3.05 

Travelling and conveyance  66.90  107.34 

Insurance  315.14  176.07 

Rates and taxes  180.55  113.92 

Research and development expenses  -   1.52 

Charity and donation  25.45  191.05 

Allowance for credit losses on trade receivables  11.35  -  

Professional & consultancy fees  332.88  247.08 

CSR expenses  266.91  200.52 

Advertisement and publicity  0.70  0.13 

Sales promotion expenses  56.24  26.28 

Brokerage and commission  -   11.23 

Loss on sale of Property plant and equipment  46.96  -  

Miscellaneous expenses (refer note 37.2)  426.23  672.38 

Total  6,506.54  6,104.60 

Note 37.1: Includes provision for obsolensce of inventory amounting to H28.30 lakhs (March 31, 2023: H13.28 lakhs)

Note 36- Freight and forwarding expenses	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Carriage Outward (including fleet operating expenses) (refer note 46B)  24,665.84  29,160.95 

 24,665.84  29,160.95 
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Note 37.2: Payment to Auditors	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Statutory audit fees  10.00  10.00 

Tax audit fees  5.25  5.25 

Certification and other service  6.75  1.50 

Reimbursement of expenses  0.36  -  

 22.36  16.75 

Note: 38 Tax expense	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

(a) 	Current tax 

Current tax on profits for the year  1,937.79  2,324.56 

Total current tax expense  1,937.79  2,324.56 

(b) 	Deferred tax

Deferred tax  442.46  2,404.33 

Total deferred income tax expense/(benefit)  442.46  2,404.33 

(c) 	Tax in respect of earlier years  (12.15)  13.09 

Tax expenses  2,368.10  4,741.98 

38.1 Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Corporate tax rate:	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Profit before tax  11,060.60  13,334.38 

 Tax at the Corporate tax rate of 34.944%  3,865.02  4,659.57 

Items not deductible under Income Tax Act, 1961  134.34  53.02 

Other tax benefits in the form of deduction allowed to the Company  (50.42)  -  

Tax impact due to brought forward losses  (59.76)  -  

Effect of allowances/ tax holidays for tax purpose  -   (50.39)

Adjustment related to earlier years  (12.15)  13.09 

Difference in tax rate due to amalgamation (refer note 38.4)  -   (68.09)

Differed tax asset recognised on tax holiday period (refer note 7.5)  (1,930.59)  -  

Others  421.66  134.78 

Tax expenses  2,368.10  4,741.98 

Note 38.2 : The corporate tax rate used for the year 2023-24 and 2022-23 for above reconciliation is 34.944% (30%+ 

surcharge @12% + education cess @4%) payable on taxable profits under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Note 38.3 : During the year, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income in the tax assessments under the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provision of the Income tax Act, 1961). Accordingly, 

there are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts.

Note 38.4: The National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Guwahati bench vide order dated May 10, 2024 has sanctioned the 

scheme for amalgamation of Meghalaya Power Limited (MPL), Megha Technical and Engineers Private Limited (MTEPL) and 

NE Hills Hydro Limited (NHHL) with the company and appointed date of merger is April 1,2023 (refer note 49 for details). The 

tax rates applicable on transferror companies viz MPL and MTEPL was 27.82% and for transferee company 34.944% for the 

previous year ended March 31, 2023, impact of difference in tax rate is H 68.09 lakhs for FY 2022-23.
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Note: 39A Components of other comprehensive income (net of taxes)	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss:

- Remeasurement of defined benefit plans  (9.43)  0.45 

- Income tax related to above  3.30  0.74 

- Fair value of equity instrument through other comprehensive income  1.35  1.62 

- Income tax related to above  (0.47)  -   

 (5.25)  2.81 

Note: 40 Employees Benefits
Post-employment obligations

(A) 	 Gratuity

	 The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is 

entitled to Gratuity based on entitlement not less than as per The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The scheme is funded 

with the insurance company. {refer note 49(8)}

(i) 	 The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year 

are as follows:

	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Present value  

of obligation

 Fair value of 

plan assets 

 Net amount 

April 1, 2022  380.32  (283.48)  96.84 

Current service cost  17.27  -   17.27 

Interest expense/(income)  21.99  (18.71)  3.28 

Total amount recognised in profit or loss  39.26  (18.71)  20.55 

Remeasurements:

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest 

expense/(income)

 -   0.32  0.32 

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions  -   -   -  

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions  (8.86)  -   (8.86)

Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience  (16.29)  -   (16.29)

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  (25.15)  0.32  (24.83)

Employer contributions/ premium paid  -   (10.00)  (10.00)

Benefit paid  (50.90)  50.90  -  

March 31, 2023  343.53  (260.97)  82.56 

Note: 39B Earnings per share	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

(i)	 Profit attributable to equity holders of the company used in calculating basic and 

diluted earning per share

 8,692.50  8,592.40 

(ii)	 Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 

basic earnings per share

 3,80,69,225  3,80,69,225 

(iii)	Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 

diluted earnings per share

 3,80,69,225  3,80,69,225 

(iv)	Earning per share (in H):

	 Face value of Equity shares  10.00  10.00 

	 Basic  22.83  22.57 

	 Diluted  22.83  22.57 
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	 Net Liability/(Asset) recognised in the balance sheet	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation  389.25  343.53 

Fair Value of Plan Assets  259.40  260.97 

Net Liability/(Asset)  in the Balance Sheet  129.85  82.56 

Current Liability /(Asset)  30.21  24.53 

Non-Current Liability /(Asset)  99.64  58.03 

(ii) 	 Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions

	 The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:	  

Particulars As at 

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Discount rate 7.10% 7.40%

Expected return on plan assets 7.10% 7.40%

Salary growth rate 7.00% 6.00%

Withdrawal rate 1% to 8% 1% to 8%

Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) 

Table

IALM (2012-14) 

Table

	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Present value  

of obligation

 Fair value of 

plan assets 

 Net amount 

April 1, 2023  343.53  (260.97)  82.56 

Current service cost  31.02  -   31.02 

Interest expense/(income)  25.43  (18.58)  6.84 

Total amount recognised in profit or loss  56.45  (18.58)  37.86 

Remeasurements:

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest 

expense/(income)

 -   0.24  0.24 

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions  -   -   -  

Actuarial (gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions  43.28  -   43.28 

Actuarial (gain)/loss from unexpected experience  (34.09)  -   (34.09)

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  9.19  0.24  9.43 

Employer contributions/ premium paid  -   -   -  

Benefit paid  (19.91)  19.91  -  

March 31, 2024  389.26  (259.40)  129.85 

(iii) 	Sensitivity analysis
	 The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:        (H in lakhs)

Particulars

Impact on defined benefit obligation

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

1% rate increase 1% rate decrease 1% rate increase 1% rate decrease

Discount rate  (33.93)  41.25  (28.55)  34.72 

Salary growth rate  38.58  (32.50)  34.17  (28.92)

Withdrawal rate  1.47  0.17  4.23  (3.13)

	 The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. 
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating 
the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value 
of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) 
has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance Sheet.

	 The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the 
prior period.	
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(iv) 	The major categories of plan assets

	 The defined benefit plans are funded with insurance companies of India. The Company does not have any liberty to 

manage the funds provided to insurance companies. Thus the composition of each major category of plan assets has 

not been disclosed.

		  (H in lakhs)

Particulars

Gratuity (Funded)

As at  
March 31, 2024

As at 
March 31, 2023

Funds managed by Insurer 100% 100%

(v) 	 Risk exposure

	 Through its defined benefit plans the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are 

detailed below:

	 Investment risk:

	 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to 

the Government of India bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

	 Interest risk:

	 A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.

	 Life expectancy:

	 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality 

of plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan 

participants will increase the plan liability.

	 Salary growth risk:

	 The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan 

participants. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

(vi) 	Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

	 Expected contributions to post-employment benefits plans for the year ending March 31, 2025 are H 41.98 lakhs. 

(March 31, 2024 : H 50.38 lakhs)

	 The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 5.31 years (March 31, 2023: 5.96 years).

	 The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:	 (H in lakhs)

Particulars Less than 

a year

Between 

2- 5 years

Over 5 

years

March 31, 2024  30.21  21.93  70.00 

March 31, 2023  24.54  35.73  106.51 

(B) 	 Defined Contribution Plan:

	 In respect of defined contribution plan, with respect to provident fund contribution and pension fund contribution, 

an amount of H104.74 lakhs (March 31, 2023: H 126.79 lakhs) has been recognised as expenses in the statement of 

profit and loss during the year.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note : 41 - Capital management
Risk management

The primary objective of capital management is to ensure the healthy capital ratio of the Company in order to support its 

business and maximise shareholders value. The Company manages its capital structure according to changing economic 

conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2024 as compared 

to previous year. There have been no breaches of financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowings for the 

reported years. The Company monitors capital structure on the basis of debt to equity ratio. For the purpose of capital 

management, equity includes paid up equity share capital and other equity, and debt comprises short term borrowings 

including current maturities of these borrowings. The following table summarizes debt and equity of the Company.



Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report 2023-24  |  67

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended  

March 31, 2023

Long term Borrowings  -   -  

Short-term Borrowings  51.22  1,763.11 

Less: Cash and Cash equivalent  1,797.83  330.00 

Less: Bank balances Other than Cash and Cash equivalent  4,478.39  9,901.77 

Net Debt  (6,225.00)  (8,468.66)

Total Equity  1,32,381.62  1,23,694.37 

Capital and net debt  1,26,156.61  1,15,225.70 

Gearing ratio - -

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company review the fund management at regular intervals and take necessary 

actions to maintain the requisite capital structure.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 

and March 31, 2023.

Note : 42 - Financial instruments by category	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Amortised 

cost

Fair Value 

through Other 

comprehensive 

Income 

(FVOCI)

Carrying 

Amount

Amortised 

cost

Fair Value 

through Other 

comprehensive 

Income 

(FVOCI)

Carrying 

Amount

Financial assets

(i)	 Investments  -   34.02  34.02  10,333.27  32.67  10,365.94 

(ii) 	Loans  29,100.08  -   29,100.08  2,963.08  -   2,963.08 

(iii)	Trade receivables  10,168.48  -   10,168.48  6,354.57  -   6,354.57 

(iv)	Cash and cash equivalents  1,797.83  -   1,797.83  330.00  -   330.00 

(v)	 Balance with banks {other than 

(iv) above}

 4,478.39  -   4,478.39  9,901.77  -   9,901.77 

(vi) Other financial assets  701.82  -   701.82  7,265.53  -   7,265.53 

 46,246.60  34.02  46,280.62  37,148.22  32.67  37,180.89 

Financial liabilities

(i)	 Borrowings  51.22  -   51.22  1,763.11  -   1,763.11 

(iii)	Trade payables  6,412.69  -   6,412.69  7,148.60  -   7,148.60 

(iv)	Lease Liabilities  250.62  -   250.62  276.07  -   276.07 

(v)	 Other financial liabilities  797.50  -   797.50  852.06  -   852.06 

 7,512.03  -   7,512.03  10,039.84  -   10,039.84 

(i) 	 Fair value hierarchy

	 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 

valuation techniques:

	 Level 1: This level includes those financial instruments which are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in 

active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

	 Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 

techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. 

If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

	 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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(ii)	 Valuation technique used to determine fair value

	 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received if the Company, 

sold an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

	 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

(a) 	 The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables, short-term loans, current financial 

liabilities and assets and borrowings approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short-term nature of 

these instruments. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities 

recognised at nominal cost/amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values. In respect of 

non current trade receivables and loans, fair value is determined by using discount rates that reflect the present 

borrowing rate of the Company.

(b) 	 Unquoted investments (other than Investment in Associate) in shares have been valued based on historical net 

asset value as per the latest audited financial statements after considering the impact of fair valuation of immovable 

properties which is based on valuation report from independent valuer.

(iii) 	Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets 

Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)  -   -   34.02  -   -   32.67 

Total financial assets  -   -   34.02  -   -   32.67 

	 During the reporting period ending March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, there was no transfer between level 1 and level 

3 fair value measurement.	

	 The carrying amount of Cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances (other than cash and cash equivalents), investment in 

bonds, loans and other financial assets, trade receivables, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their 

carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

(iv) 	Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Carrying 

amount

Fair value Carrying 

amount

Fair value

 Financial assets 

(i)	 Investments  -   -   10,333.27  10,355.60 

(ii)	 Loans  29,100.08  29,100.08  2,963.08  2,963.08 

(iii) 	 Trade receivables  10,168.48  10,168.48  6,354.57  6,354.57 

(iv)	 Cash and cash equivalents  1,797.83  1,797.83  330.00  330.00 

(v)	 Balance with banks {Other than (iv) above}  4,478.39  4,478.39  9,901.77  9,901.77 

(vi)	 Other financial assets  701.82  701.82  7,265.53  7,265.53 

 46,246.60  46,246.60  37,148.22  37,170.55 

Financial liabilities

(i)	 Borrowings  51.22  51.22  1,763.11  1,763.11 

(ii)	 Trade payables  6,412.69  6,412.69  7,148.60  7,148.60 

(iii)	 Lease Liabilities  250.62  250.62  276.07  276.07 

(iv)	 Other financial liabilities  797.50  797.50  852.06  852.06 

 7,512.03  7,512.03  10,039.84  10,039.84 

(v) 	 Significant estimates	

	 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. 

The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly as on market 

conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of 

changes to these assumptions refer note 42(ii) and note 42(iii).

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Note : 43 - Financial risk management
The Company’s activities are exposed to a varieties of financial risks viz credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk i.e. foreign 

currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how 

the entity manages the risk:

(A) 	 Credit risk

	 Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 

leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily in trade 

receivables) and from its financing activities including deposits placed with banks and financial institutions and other 

financial instruments.

i) 	 Trade receivables 

	 Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit as per the Company established policies, procedures and 

defined control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are 

generally carrying 30 days credit terms. Primary revenue of the company are mainly related to holding company and 

fellow subsidiaries which is accounted for 90% or more of the Company’s total sales. Therefore, the Company does 

not expect any material risk on account of non-performance by any of its customers.

	 For expected credit loss as at each reporting date, the Company assesses risk profile of the trade receivables and 

categorises risk profile viz trade receivables for which credit risk has not significantly increased from initial recognition, 

trade receivables for which credit risk has increased significantly but are not credit impaired and trade receivables for 

which credit risk has increased significantly and are credit impaired.   

	 The Company adopted simplified approach model for computing credit loss allowance based on a provision 

matrix. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade 

receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default 

rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated. Accordingly, loss allowances on trade receivables 

are measured using provision matrix at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall.

	 The following table summarises the change in the loss allowances measured using simplified approach model :

Particulars (H in lakhs)

As at April 1, 2022 89.49

Provided during the year  -  

As at March 31, 2023 89.49

Provided during the year 11.35

As at March 31, 2024 100.84

ii) 	 Financial instruments and deposits

	 Credit risk pertaining to balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Treasury department of the 

Company as per Company’s policy. Surplus funds are parked only within approved investment categories with well 

defined limits. Investment category is periodically reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors.

	 Credit risk arising from short term liquid funds, other balances with banks and other cash equivalents is limited and 

no collaterals are held against these because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial institutions with 

high credit ratings assigned by the credit rating agencies.

	 None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risks.

	 Other financial assets mainly include incentives receivable from the government, loans & interest thereon and 

security deposits given. There are no indications that defaults in payment obligations would occur in respect of 

these financial assets.

	 The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 and 

March 31, 2023 is the carrying amounts as given in note 42.

(B) 	 Liquidity risk

	 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that 

are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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	 Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of 

funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of 

the underlying business, the Company maintains sufficient cash and liquid investments available to meet its obligation.

	 Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities 

given below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The management also considers the 

cash flows projection and level of liquid assets necessary to meet these on a regular basis.

(i) 	 Financing arrangements

	 The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Floating Rate

Expiring within one year (including non-fund based limits undrawn of H 

4855.06 lakhs as on March 31, 2024, H 6869.00 lakhs as on March 31, 2023,) 

 9,304.84  11,606.00 

 9,304.84  11,606.00 

	 The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn (subject to available drawing power) at any time and may be terminated 

by the bank without notice. Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank loan facilities may be 

drawn at any time in Indian Rupee (INR).

(ii) 	 Maturities of financial liabilities

	 The Below tables show the analysis of financial liabilities based on their maturity and obligation of the Company in 

future time period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due 

within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

	 (H in lakhs) 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities - 

March 31, 2024

Less than 1 

year

Between 1 and 

5 years

More than 5 

years

Total

Borrowings  51.22  -   -   51.22 

Trade payables  6,412.69  -   -   6,412.69 

Lease Liabilities  60.11  211.33  65.54  336.98 

Other payables  797.50  -   -   797.50 

Total financial liabilities  7,321.52  211.33  65.54  7,598.39 

	 (H in lakhs) 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities - 

March 31, 2023	

Less than 1 

year

Between 1 and 

5 years

More than 5 

years

Total

Borrowings  1,763.11  -   -   1,763.11 

Trade payables  7,148.60  -   -   7,148.60 

Lease Liabilities  61.26  217.35  108.05  386.66 

Other payables  852.06  -   -   852.06 

Total financial liabilities  9,825.03  217.35  108.05  10,150.43 

(C) 	Market risk

(i) 	 Foreign currency risk	

	 The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 

exchange rates. The Company deals with international vendors with respect to stores/coal procurement, which 

rises exposure of the company to foreign exchange risk (primarily with respect to USD). In view of low proportion 

of import, as compared to the overall operations, the exposure of the Company to foreign exchange risk is also not 

considered to be material. The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows.

	 The Company does not have any exposure to foreign currency at each reporting date.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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(ii) 	 Interest rate risk	

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 

primarily to the Company debt obligations with floating interest rates.

	 The Company main interest rate risk arises from Short-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the 

Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the Company borrowings at 

variable rate were denominated in Indian Rupee (INR).	

(a)	 Interest rate risk exposure on financial liabilities

	 The exposure of the Company financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Variable rate borrowings  51.22  1,763.11 

Total borrowings  51.22  1,763.11 

(b) 	 Sensitivity analysis of interest rate change

	 Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates 

as below:

(H in lakhs)

Particulars

Impact on profit before tax

Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Interest expense rates – increase by 50 basis points  (0.26)  (8.82)

Interest expense rates – decrease by 50 basis points  0.26  8.82 

* Interest rate sensitivity has been calculated assuming the borrowing outstanding at the reporting date have been outstanding 

for the entire period

(iii)	 Price risk	

	 The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors 

specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded 

in the market.

	 The Company exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company in equity securities 

and classified in the Balance Sheet as at fair value through profit and loss and fair value through comprehensive 

income. The Company has investment in unquoted equity securities. Investment is done in accordance with the 

limits set by the Company. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all investment decisions.

	 Sensitivity

	 The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the investment in equity securities:

(H in lakhs)

Particulars

Impact on profit before tax

Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Increase by 5%*  1.70  1.63 

Decrease by 5%*  (1.70)  (1.63)

* Holding all other variables constant
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note : 44 - Contingent liability & commitments
i) 	 Contingent Liability 	 (H in lakhs)

Sr 

No

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Claims against the Company not acknowledge as debts :

1 Income tax demand  3,545.61  2,470.03 

2 Excise duty demand  12.17  256.35 

3 Royalty & cess demand {refer note 44 (a)}  21,497.85  21,497.85 

4 Royalty & cess demand {refer note 44 (b)}  5,673.09  7,476.79 

5 Demand on Custom Duty {refer note 44 (c)}  403.82  403.82 

6 Service tax demand  51.31  51.31 

7 Goods & service tax demand {also refer note 44(d)}  1,365.81  1,340.97 

8 VAT Demand {refer note 44(e)}  2,276.53  - 

9 Others  78.62  78.62 

 34,904.81  33,575.74 

Note: Based on legal opinion / decisions in similar cases, the Company believes that the Company has a fair chance of favorable 

decisions in cases mentioned here-in-above and hence no provision is considered necessary.				  

ii) 	 Commitments 	 (H in lakhs)

Sr 

No

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

1 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 

and not provided for (net of advances)	

 928.84  - 

(a)	 Earlier the Company had received a demand notice dated February 19, 2020 from the Director of Mineral Resources, 

Meghalaya, for payment of royalty, MEPRF, VAT/GST for H 21,497.85 lakhs in pursuance to the National Green 

Tribunal (NGT) order dated January 17, 2020 for alleged illegal coal procurement. By passing the said order 

NGT had accepted the recommendation of 5th Interim Report of the Independent Committee set up by NGT, 

which then suggested imposition of penalty on Cement Companies and Thermal Power Plants in Meghalaya. 

The Company did not purchase any illegal coal and had complied with all disclosure requirements of the various Government 

Departments. The Report of NGT Committee was based on the assumptions & views of the Committee and not on hard 

facts. Moreover neither the Company has been issued a show-cause nor any opportunity of being heard was given to 

the Company before submitting the Interim reports by the Independent Committee to NGT. Further NGT did not serve 

any notice on the Company before passing the impugned order which is a clear violation of principles of natural justice. 

In the previous year on an appeal by the company, the Apex Court vide it’s order dated May 2, 2023 restored the 

proceeding back to NGT, at the stage, as it stood prior to the passing of the judgement dated January 17, 2020. 

Subsequently the matter has been transferred to the NGT, Eastern Zone Bench, and the Company has filed necessary 

affidavits and the matter is subjudice. No provision has been considered necessary at this stage.

(b)	 As reported in the previous year, the Company had received a demand notice dated March 20, 2023 from the 

Divisional Mining Officer (DMO), Directorate of Mineral Resources, Meghalaya, Jowai towards outstanding dues 

of royalty & Cess on Coal, Limestone, Sandstone, Clay and Shale procured/consumed by the Company in certain 

specific periods between F.Y. 2009-10 to F.Y. 2022-23 amounting to H9,408.42 lakhs (including H5,650.25 lakhs 

towards Penal Interest) against which a provision amounting to H1,931.62 lakhs was made in the earlier years on 

account of abundant precaution. As per the provisions of the Mines and Minerals (Development and Regulation) Act, 

1957, the liability for payment of royalty in respect of any mineral removed/ consumed from the mining lease arises 

on the holder of the mining lease and not on the purchaser of such mined minerals. Hence, there is no obligation 

of the Company to pay royalty/cess in case the minerals are procured from third party vendors. During the year the 

office of DMO has withdrawn and issued no dues certificates towards its demand for payment of Royalty & Cess on 

Shale and accordingly provision lying in the books amounting to H 128.51 lakhs have been written back. Since the 

liability to pay royalty & cess itself is not applicable to the company, no provision of differential demand of H5,673.09 
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lakhs (including penal interest H 4,875.10 lakhs & net of provision kept in the books) has been provided and shown as 

contingent liability. Based on the legal opinion received in this regard, the Company has disputed the demand and 

believe that the said demand is not tenable and the matter shall be disposed off in the favour of the Company.

(c)	 During the previous year, the Commissioner of Customs (Port)- Kolkata has issued a demand cum show cause 

notice (D&SCN) dated October 22, 2022 to the company for differential custom duty amounting to H 403.82 lakhs 

& interest & penalties thereon (as applicable) for non-fulfilment of export obligations (EO) against Import of Capital 

goods in the year 2009 to 2011 under four EPCG licenses as per Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme. 

In previous financial year, on April 26, 2022, the Deputy Director, DRI, Shillong Regional Unit had also seized certain 

machineries of the company valuing H 5027.01 lakhs alleging non-fulfilment of EO as mentioned above but later 

allowed to continue the use of the seized machinery. In the said D&SCN, the Company has been asked to reply 

as to why the seized imported machineries as above should not be confiscated and why differential Custom duty 

foregone shall not be demanded along with applicable interest & penalties. The D&SCN as above also disputed the 

EO fulfilled by the company against two EPCG licenses either by itself or through its group Company in earlier years. 

In its reply to the Commissioner of Customs (Port)- Kolkata, the company has claimed that it has fulfilled all its EO 

as required against all the four EPCG licenses and further paid the differential custom duty & interest thereon where 

there was shortfall in fulfilling the EO and hence the said demand is not tenable. The Company has further stated that 

fulfilment of EO through the group Company was well within the ambit of Foreign Trade Policy. The Company firmly 

believes that it has a good case in this matter and hence no provision has been made in the books of accounts.

	 Further in the previous year, Additional Director General of Foreign Trade, Guwahati had imposed a penalty of H 

311.56 lakhs on the similar grounds as mentioned above in case of one EPCG license. On its appeal before Director 

General of Foreign Trade, Delhi (DGFT), DGFT vide its order dated August 08, 2022 has remanded back the matter to 

Regional Authority, Guwahati for de-novo consideration and the matter is pending at the DGFT, Guwahati. No further 

communication has been received in this regard.

(d)	 The Company had received a demand notice from the Director General of Goods & Service Tax Intelligence 

(DGGI), Shillong towards non-payment of GST under reverse charge mechanism (RCM) amounting to 

H415.80 lakhs on payment of Royalty, DMF, NMET & Mineral cess and H244.20 lakhs towards ineligible 

input tax credit (ITC) availed by the company under RCM during certain specific periods between July 

2017 to December 2018 (along with penalty amounting to H415.80 & H244.20 lakhs and interest thereon). 

The Company has made the adequate payment of GST under RCM amounting to H244.20 lakhs @ 5% applicable rate, 

before the issuance of demand notice, which has not been taken in cognizance by DGGI and imposed a demand of 

H415.80 lakhs based on a higher rate of 18% based on CBIC circular no 164/20/2021-GST dated 6th October 2021 

with retrospective effect. By giving a reference of a Tribunal decision on a similar case in the favour of assessee, the 

company has submitted its reply to DGGI and sought for disposal of the matter in its favour and no communication 

has been received from DGGI since then and the matter is pending. The company considers the above demand non 

tenable and deserves to be set aside. Based on the legal opinion received, the Company believes that it has a good 

case in this matter and no provision is required at this stage.

(e)	 During the year, the Superintendent of Taxes, East Jaintia Hills District, Khliehriat has raised a demand of H1885.67 

lakhs and H390.86 lakhs towards Meghalaya Value Added Tax (MVAT)and Central sales tax (CST) respectively on its 

scrutiny of tax returns submitted by the Company under Section 39 of the Meghalaya Value Added Tax Act, 2003 

& Section 9 of Central Sales Tax Act 1956 for the period from June 2007 to June 2017. The Company has disputed 

both the matters and filed the writ petition before the Hon’ble High Court of Meghalaya mainly on the ground that 

the above demand is time barred and not tenable under the applicable law. On hearing the matter, the court has 

passed an interim order that no coercive action shall be taken against the Company if the Company deposits a 

sum of H200.00 lakhs within stipulated time. Based on the direction of the court, a sum of H200.00 lakhs has been 

deposited as a deposit and the matter is subjudice.

	 Based on the legal opinion received, the Company is of view that since the notices & assessment orders have been 

issued much after the period of limitation as prescribed under the provisions of CST Act & MVAT Act, the demand is 

not tenable and no provision is required at this stage.
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Note 45: Leases	
a. 	 The Company has entered into lease agreements with different parties for taking offices and land on lease and license 

basis for business operation. The lease term of different contracts varies in a range of 2 to 9 years and price is on fixed 

rental basis with escalation clauses in the lease agreements.

b.	 Lease liabilities are recognised at weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 5.60% to 9.84%. Set out below are the 

carrying amounts of lease liabilities included under financial liabilities and its movement during the year.

	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Opening balance  276.07  279.44 

Additions  11.74  31.56 

Deletions  (0.63)  -  

Add: Interest recognised during the year  19.84  19.76 

Add: Amount transfer to Capital work in progress  -   0.62 

Less: Payments made  (56.40)  (55.31)

Closing balance  250.62  276.07 

Non Current Lease Liability  213.64  240.55 

Current Lease Liability  36.98  35.52 

c. 	 Amount recognized in Profit or Loss related to lease contracts	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Interest expense on lease liabilities  19.84  19.76 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets  42.89  40.51 

d. 	 Amount transferred to capital work in progress related to lease contracts	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Interest expense on lease liabilities  -   0.62 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets  -   1.67 

e. 	 Future payment of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis

	 As per the requirement of Ind AS-107, maturity analysis of lease liabilities have been shown under maturity analysis for 

financial liabilities under Liquidity risk {Refer Note 41(B)}. The below table provides details regarding the contractual 

maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis:

	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

Less than one year 60.11  61.26 

One to two years 59.02  55.82 

Two to five years 152.31  161.54 

More than five years  65.54  108.05 

Total undiscounted Lease Liabilities  336.98 386.67

	 The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient 

to meet the obligation related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.
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Note 46 A: Cost of material consumed (refer note 31) includes various expenses related to mining of lime 
stone & shale. The nature and segregation of such expenses are as follows:-
	 (H in lakhs)

Sr 

No

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

(i) Consumption of stores & spares  428.35  78.88 

(ii) Heavy vehicle /equipment running expenses  1,672.94  210.58 

(iii) Rates & taxes  3,469.51  650.45 

(iv) Miscellaneous expenses  -   0.27 

 5,570.80  940.18 

Note 46 B: Following natural head expenses related to fleet operations of the company are included in freight 
and forwarding expenses and power and fuel expenses :- 						    

(H in lakhs) 

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023

Freight outward 

(including 

expenses related 

to fleet service)

Power and fuel Freight outward 

(including 

expenses related 

to fleet service)

Power and fuel

Fuel consumption  4,783.15  1,342.32  4,003.93  1,419.65 

Consumption of stores and spares  332.26  100.75  188.05  61.06 

Repairs & Maintenance  434.21  131.66  279.57  90.78 

Insurance expenses  83.72  25.39  63.87  20.74 

Rates and taxes  81.51  24.72  55.05  17.87 

Fleet operation charges  1,611.95  541.40  1,468.47  499.66 

Toll expenses  475.78  178.92  433.34  147.75 

Miscellaneous expenses  26.91  8.16  7.36  2.39 

 7,829.49  2,353.32  6,499.64  2,259.90 

Note : 47 - Related party disclosures
A) 	 List of related parties :

Names of the related parties Nature of relationship

I.	 Names of the related parties where control exists

Star Cement Limited (SCL) Holding Company 

Star Century Global Cement Private Limited (SCGCPL) Fellow Subsidiary

Star Cement (I) Limited (SCIL) Fellow Subsidiary/Associate Company

Star Cement North East Limited (SCNEL) Fellow Subsidiary/Associate Company

II. 	 Other Related Parties

a.	 Entities controlled/jointly controlled or significantly 

influenced by Key Managerial Personnel or close 

family member of Key Managerial Personnel :

Lumshnong Village Local Area Charitable Trust

Star Cement Charitable trust

b. 	 Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Sajjan Bhajanka Director

Mr. Sanjay Agarwal Director

Mr. Prem Kumar Bhajanka Director

Mr. Tushar Bhajanka Director

Mr. Pankaj Kejriwal Director
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Names of the related parties Nature of relationship

Mr. Rajendra Chamaria Director

Mr. Emlangky Lamare Whole Time Director

Mrs. Clara Suja Independent Director

Mr. Nirmalaya Bhattacharyya Independent Director

Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Independent Director

Mr. Ravi Bharti Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Brij Mohan Jha Company Secretary (w.e.f. May 16, 2022)

III. 	 Close family members of Key Management Personnel

Rahul Chamaria (HUF) HUF of Mr. Rahul Chamaria, Son of Mr. Rajendra 

Chamaria

Rajendra Udyog (HUF) HUF of Mr. Rajendra Chamaria

B) 	 Details of transactions between the Company and related parties :	 (H in lakhs) 

Nature of Transactions

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary/

Associate Company 

KMP and their close 

family members and 

entities controlled/

jointly controlled or 

significantly influenced 

by KMP or close family 

member of KMP

Year ended 

March 31, 

2024

Year ended 

March 31, 

2023

Year ended 

March 31, 

2024

Year ended 

March 31, 

2023

Year ended 

March 31, 

2024

Year ended 

March 31, 

2023

1. 	 Purchase transactions

	 SCL  3,961.20  4,868.20  -   -   -   - 

2. 	 Sale transactions

	 SCL  94,679.58  96,591.38  -   -   -   -  

	 SCNEL  -   -   1,844.38  -   -   -  

3.	 Service rendered

	 SCL  3,318.55  2,213.90  -   -   -   -  

	 SCNEL  -   -   300.33  -   -   -  

4. 	 Services received

	 SCL  6.00  0.10  -   -   -   -  

	 Rahul Chamaria (HUF)  -   -   -   -   18.64  18.64 

	 Rajendra Udyog (HUF)  -   -   -   -   21.85  21.85 

5. 	 Sale of capital goods

	 SCL  9.44  150.01  -   -   -   -  

6. 	 Loans given

	 SCL  3,330.00  800.00  -   -   -   -  

	 SCNEL  -    -   21,537.00  -   -   -  

	 SCIL  -   -   1,915.00  -   -   -  

7. 	 Loans received back

	 SCL  625.00  5,105.00  -   -   -   -  

	 SCNEL  -   -   295.00  -   -   -  

8. 	 Purchase of investment

	 SCNEL  -   -   3,200.00  800.00  -   -  

9. 	 Purchase of equity shares

	 SCL  -   4.00  -   -   -   -  
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C) 	 Balance Outstanding as at March 31, 2024 :	 (H in lakhs) 

Nature of Transactions

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary/

Associate Company 

KMP and their close 

family members and 

entities controlled/

jointly controlled or 

significantly influenced 

by KMP or close family 

member of KMP

As at 

March 31, 

2024

As at 

March 31, 

2023

As at 

March 31, 

2024

As at 

March 31, 

2023

As at 

March 31, 

2024

As at 

March 31, 

2023

Balance Outstanding

(a) 	 Trade and other payable

	 SCL  287.67  3.72  -  -  -  - 

	 SCNEL  -  - 

	 SCIL  -  -  38.69  -  -  - 

	 Rahul Chamaria (HUF)  -  -  7.69 

	 Rajendra Udyog (HUF)  -  -  9.01 

Nature of Transactions

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary/

Associate Company 

KMP and their close 

family members and 

entities controlled/

jointly controlled or 

significantly influenced 

by KMP or close family 

member of KMP

Year ended 

March 31, 

2024

Year ended 

March 31, 

2023

Year ended 

March 31, 

2024

Year ended 

March 31, 

2023

Year ended 

March 31, 

2024

Year ended 

March 31, 

2023

10. 	Interest received

	 SCL  420.37  459.73  -   -   -   -  

	 SCNEL  -   -   513.80  -   -   -  

	 SCIL  -   -   8.59  -   -   -  

11. 	 Donation paid

	 Lumshong Village Welfare Trust  -   -   -   -   256.18  200.44 

12. 	Remuneration paid

	 Mr. Tushar Bhajanka (*)  -   -   -   -   146.67  174.67 

	 Mr. Emlangky Lamare  -   -   -   -   18.00  18.00 

	 Mr. Ravi Bharati  -   -   -   -   15.04  10.78 

	 Mr. Brij Mohan Jha  -   -   -   -   8.07  5.82 

13.	 Commission/ Incentive paid :

	 Mr. Emlangky Lamare  -   -   -   -   19.94  19.98 

14.	 Sitting fees 

	 Mrs. Clara Suja  -   -   -   -   0.05  0.05 

	 Mr. Nirmalya Bhattacharyya  -   -   -   -   0.33  0.63 

	 Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah  -   -   -   -   0.45  1.28 

	 * Mr Tushar Bhajanka has received remuneration from transferor company, MTEPL in the position of Managing director for the period 

April 1, 2023 to February 28, 2024.

(H in lakhs) 
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Nature of Transactions

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiary/

Associate Company 

KMP and their close 

family members and 

entities controlled/

jointly controlled or 

significantly influenced 

by KMP or close family 

member of KMP

As at 

March 31, 

2024

As at 

March 31, 

2023

As at 

March 31, 

2024

As at 

March 31, 

2023

As at 

March 31, 

2024

As at 

March 31, 

2023

(b)	 Loans (given):

	 SCL  5,618.08  2,913.08  -  -  - 

	 SCNEL  -  -  21,242.00  - 

	 SCIL  -  -  1,915.00  -  - 

(c) 	 Trade and other receivables

	 SCL  7,353.33  6,246.47  -  -  - 

	 SCNEL  2,747.96  -  - 

(d) 	 Security deposit given

	 Rahul Chamaria HUF  -  -  -  -  9.32  9.32 

	 Rajendra Udyog (HUF)  -  -  -  -  10.93  10.93 

(e) 	 Investments

	 SCNEL  -  -  4,002.00  2.00 

	 SCIL  -  -  2.00  2.00 

(f) 	 Remuneration payable

	 Mr. Emlangky Lamare  -  1.50  1.50 

	 Mr. Ravi Bharati  -  1.10  0.78 

	 Mr. Brij Mohan Jha  -  0.58  0.47 

(g) Commission / Incentive payable

	 Mr. Emlangky Lamare  -  1.89  2.02 

D)	 As mentioned in Note no 49, Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Guwahati Bench has approved scheme for 

amalgamation of MTEPL, MPL, and NHHL with the company vide order dated May 10, 2024 and appointed date of 

the amalgamation is April 1, 2023. Based on this order, the transactions of MPL, MTEPL and NHHL and their respective 

balances, have been merged with the company. Refer note 49(2).						    

E) 	 Transactions with and balances of related parties of transferor companies viz. MPL, MTEPL and NHHL (which are not 

related parties of the Company) are not shown in above related party disclosures as these transactions were not falling 

under the ambit of “Related Party Transaction” from the Company stand point of view. These balances and transactions 

are shown in below table:

	 	 (H in lakhs) 

Name of Related Party Nature of 

relationship

Nature of 

Transaction

Transactions Balance outstanding

Year ended 

March 31, 

2024

Year ended 

March 31, 

2023

As at 

March 31, 

2024

As at 

March 31, 

2023

Mr. Bishal Kumar Agarwal CFO of MPL Remuneration  40.95  30.66  2.67  2.41 

Mr. Vivek Lahoti CFO of MTEPL Remuneration  61.99  50.85  4.04  3.81 

Mr. Mohit Mahana CS of MTEPL Remuneration  16.88  14.08  1.16  1.04 

Mr. Amit Kiran Deb Director of MPL Director Sitting Fees  0.38  0.40  -  -  

Ms. Edielanaphika Gabriela Suja War Director of MTEPL Director Sitting Fees  0.05  0.05  -   -  

Mr. Lamshwa Kyndoh Director of MPL Director Sitting Fees  0.05  0.05  -   -  

Mr. Rangabhaduh Khonglah Director of MPL Director Sitting Fees  0.05  0.05  -   -  

(H in lakhs) 
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F)	 Key management personnel compensation	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2024

Year ended 

March 31, 2023

Short-term employee benefits  187.78  209.27 

Post-employment benefits (refer note below)  -   -  

Long-term employee benefits  -   -  

Total compensation  187.78  209.27 

Note: Post-employment benefits and other long-term benefits related to KMPs is being disclosed based on actual payment made on 

retirement /resignation of services, but does not includes provision made on actuarial basis as the same is available for all employees 

together. Further, in view of applicability of such benefits only to CFO & CS of the Company, the amount of provision made on actuarial 

basis are not significant considering the nature of operation and size of the Company.

G) 	 Terms and Conditions of transactions with Related Parties:

(i) 	 The sale and purchase transactions with related parties (including transactions related to property, plant and 

equipment) are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 

transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

(ii) 	 For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to 

amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial 

position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

(iii) 	 The remuneration of Directors is determined by the Nominations & Remuneration Committee having regard to the 

performance of individuals and market trends.

Note : 48 - Compliance on section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Based on the information/documents available with the Company, information as per the requirement of Section 22 of The 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is as under:

(H in lakhs) 

Particulars As at  

March 31, 2024

As at  

March 31, 2023

(i) 	 Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accounting 

year 

183.90 101.69

(ii) 	 Interest due on above  -   4.03 

	 Total of (i) & (ii)  183.90 105.72

(i)  	 Amount of interest paid by the Company to the suppliers in terms of Section 16 of 

the Act. 

 11.78 0.02

(ii) 	 Amount paid to the suppliers beyond the respective appointed date.  83.54 85.80

(iii)  Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in payments (which 

have been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the 

interest specified under the Act.

 -  -

(iv)	 Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year.  -  4.03

(v) 	 Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 

years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the 

small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure 

under Section 23 of this Act.

 - -

Above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis intimation received from 

the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
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Note : 49 - Business Combination	
1)	 The National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Guwahati bench vide order dated May 10, 2024 has sanctioned the 

scheme for amalgamation (“the scheme”) of Meghalaya Power Limited (MPL), Megha Technical and Engineers Private 

Limited (MTEPL) and NE Hills Hydro Limited (NHHL) (all three being referred as “Transferor Company”) with Star Cement 

Meghalaya Limited (SCML), (“Transferee” or the “Company”), pursuant to section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and appointed date of the scheme is April 1, 2023.

2)  	 As per the approved scheme of amalgamation by the NCLT, a copy of the order was filed with the Registrar of Companies, 

on May 20, 2024 in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013. This business combination 

involves entities or businesses under common control, so accounting has been carried out as per ‘Pooling of interest 

method’ as prescribed by Ind AS 103 “Business Combination”. As per requirement of Ind As 103, the financial information 

in the financial statements in respect of previous year i.e. for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been restated as if the 

business combination had occurred from the beginning of the previous year in the financial statements i.e. 1.4.2022 

irrespective of the actual date of the combination.

3) 	 Based on the NCLT order, upon coming into effect of the scheme and with effect from the appointed date, the MPL, 

MTEPL & NHHL shall stand amalgamated with the Company, as a going concern, without any further deed or act, 

together with all the undertaking of the transferor companies in line with the provisions of the scheme.

4)	 In pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation, the company has issued 1,19,80,569 equity shares of H10 each fully paid on 

May 22, 2024 to the shareholders of the transferor companies in the following exchange ratio :

(i)  	 To the shareholder of MPL- 1 fully paid-up equity share of H10 each in transferee company for each 6 fully paid- up 

equity shares of H10 each of MPL.

(ii)  	To the shareholder of MTEPL- 1 fully paid-up equity share of H10 each in transferee company for each 3 fully paid- up 

shares of H10 each of MTEPL

(iii)	 To the shareholder of NHHL - 1 fully paid-up equity share of H10 each in transferee company for each 7 fully paid- up 

shares of H10 each of NHHL.

5)  	 The Company has recorded all assets and liabilities of all the transferor Companies, at their respective book values thereof 

as appearing in the books of the accounts of all the transferor companies at the close of the business day immediately 

preceding the appointed date after giving the impact of accounting policy changes in line with the accounting policies 

followed by the transferee company. The book values are based on audited financial statements of all the transferor 

companies which were approved by respective company’s board of the directors. Further figures of all the transferor 

companies have been regrouped and/or rearranged wherever required to align with disclosure parameters of the 

Company.

6)	 A summary of assets and liabilities of MPL, MTEPL, & NHHL ‘s incorporated as at appointed date (i.e. April 01, 2023) is as 

follows:

	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars MPL MTEPL NHHL Total

Assets

Non current assets

Property, Plant & Equipment  14,388.67  1,425.04  2.06  15,815.77 

Capital work in progress  940.89  40.87  -   981.76 

Right of use asset  0.19  2.91  -   3.10 

Intangible Assets  -   0.37  -   0.37 

Investment  -   11,634.99  32.67  11,667.66 

Loan  -   8,313.08  -   8,313.08 

Other financial assets  1.59  2,292.82  -   2,294.41 

Deferred tax assets  -   1,869.29  -   1,869.29 

Non current tax assets  325.29  154.23  -   479.52 

Other non current assets  71.21  26.29  1.17  98.67 

 15,727.84  25,759.89  35.90  41,523.63 
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	 (H in lakhs) 

Particulars MPL MTEPL NHHL Total

Current assets

Inventories  1,387.97  190.34  1,578.31 

Trade Receivables  429.39  658.97  1,088.36 

Cash & Cash Equivalents  39.47  99.49  0.33  139.29 

Bank Balance  26.44  6,029.33  6,055.77 

Other financial assets  -  320.55  320.55 

Other assets  159.21  61.65  220.86 

 2,042.48  7,360.33  0.33  9,403.14 

A.	 Total assets  17,770.32  33,120.22  36.23  50,926.77 

	 Liabilities

	 Non current liabilities

	 Borrowing  400.00  -  -  400.00 

	 Other financial liabilities  -   30.44  -   30.44 

	 Provisions  22.84  58.33  -   81.17 

	 Deferred tax liabilities  245.22  -   -   245.22 

	 Other Non current liabilities  36.06  9.62  -   45.68 

 704.12  98.39  -   802.51 

	 Current liabilities  -  

	 Lease liabilities  0.23  2.97  -   3.20 

	 Trade payable -  1,940.47  433.56  -   2,374.03 

	 Other financial liabilities  111.08  120.61  -   231.69 

	 Provisions  7.51  9.70  -   17.21 

	 Current tax liabilities  -   2.13  -   2.13 

	 Other current liabilities  42.52  164.10  1.23  207.85 

 2,101.81  733.07  1.23  2,836.11 

B. 	 Total Liabilities  2,805.93  831.46  1.23  3,638.62 

	 Reserves acquired  -  

	 Securities premium  5,232.25  -   -   5,232.25 

	 Retained earning  8,019.08  22,295.57  (1.97)  30,312.68 

	 Equity instruments through OCI {refer note 49 (7)}  -   7,258.55  29.97  7,288.52 

 -  

C. 	Total reserves  13,251.33  29,554.12  28.00  42,833.45 

 -  

D. 	Net Asset / (liabilities) as on April 1,2023 (A-B-C)  1,713.06  2,734.64  7.00  4,454.70 

	 Consideration

	 Equity shares issued as per scheme  285.51  911.55  1.00  1,198.06 

E. 	 Total consideration  285.51  911.55  1.00  1,198.06 

F. 	 Capital reserve arisen on amalgamation (D-E)  1,427.55  1,823.09  6.00  3,256.64 

7) 	 Upon coming into effect of this scheme, to the extent, there are investments, inter corporate loan/advances, deposits 

balances, any receivables and payable as between transferor company and transferee companies, the obligations related 

to thereof has come to an end and corresponding effect is given in the books of accounts of transferee company for the 

reduction of related assets and liabilities. 

	 Further, OCI reserve related to equity instrument through OCI on equity shares and investment held by the MTEPL in 

SCML has been netted off with the share capital and securities premium in the books of SCML. 
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	 In pursuant to above mentioned scheme, 37,29,162 equity shares of the company held by the transferee company 

(MTEPL), shall be deemed to be cancelled without any further act or deed. 

8) 	 Actuarial Valuation for retirements benefits in terms of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As 19) on “Employee Benefits” 

has been undertaken for transferor companies and transferor company separately. Valuation of retirement benefits for 

amalgamated entity has been estimated based on actuarial valuation of individual companies separately.

9) 	 The reconciliation of Equity of the company as on March 31, 2023 after giving impact of the scheme of amalgamation is 

as follow:

Particulars (H in lakhs)

Total equity of the Company as on March 31, 2023 before the impact of the Scheme  86,648.01 

Equity shares issued as on May 22, 2024 per the Scheme {refer note 49(4)} (shown under Equity 

share suspense)

 1,198.06 

Capital Reserve arisen on Business Combination {refer note 49(6)}  3,256.64 

Cancellation of securities premium related to equity shares held by the Transferor company (MTEPL)  (2,610.32)

Total reserves of MPL as on March 31, 2023 {refer note 49(6)}  13,251.33 

Total reserves of MTEPL as on March 31, 2023 {refer note 49(6)}  22,295.57 

Total reserves of NHHL as on March 31, 2023 {refer note 49(6)}  28.00 

Total equity as on March 31, 2023 after the impact of the Scheme  1,23,694.37 

Note : 50 - Corporate social responsibility	 (H in lakhs)

Sr 

No

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year  155.68  114.59 

(b) Carry forward amount from previous year (shortfall)/ Surplus  -   -  

(c) Amount spent during the year on :

(i)	 Construction/acquisition of any asset  -   -  

(ii)	 On purpose other than above  269.91  200.52 

(d) Payment made  266.91  200.52 

(e) Yet to be paid  -   -  

(f) The nature of CSR activities undertaken by the Company Making available 

 Promoting 

Healthcare, 

Education, Sports 

upliftment, 

Animal Welfare, 

Rural development 

program, Flood/ 

Disaster Relief, 

Livelihood & skill 

building and  

Environment 

Sustainability 

Making available 

 Promoting 

Healthcare, 

Education, Sports 

upliftment, 

Animal Welfare, 

Rural development 

program, Flood/ 

Disaster Relief, 

Livelihood & skill 

building and  

Environment 

Sustainability

(g) Related Party transactions as per Ind AS 24 in relation to CSR 

expenditure (refer note 50.1)

 181.92  151.72 

Note 50.1 : The Company has paid donations of H256.18 lakhs (March 31, 2023: H200.44 lakhs) to Lumshnong Village Local Area Charitable 

Trust, out of which H181.92 lakhs (March 31, 2023: H151.72 lakhs) is utilised for the purpose of CSR activities as per Companies Act, 2013
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Note: 51 - Financial Ratios	 (H in lakhs)

Sr 

No

Ratio Numerator Denominator FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 % Variance

1 Current Ratio (in times) Current Assets Current Liabilities  4.39  3.78 15.97%

2 Debt- Equity Ratio (in 

times)^

Total Debt (Long 

term + Short term 

borrowing)

Equity (Share Capital 

+ Other equity)

 0.00  0.01 -97.29%

3 Debt Service Coverage 

Ratio (in times)$

Earnings available for 

debt service

Debt service  57.93  9.23 527.47%

4 Return on Equity Ratio (%) Net Profit Average 

Shareholders equity 

(5)

6.79% 7.20% -5.66%

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio (in 

times)

Sales Average Inventory (1)  4.96  6.49 -23.56%

6 Trade Receivables Turnover 

Ratio (in times)

Sales Average Trade 

receivable (2)

 12.27  12.96 -5.30%

7 Trade Payables Turnover 

Ratio (in times)*

Purchases Average Trade 

Payable (3)

 1.96  3.54 -44.60%

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio 

(in times)

Sales Working capital= 

Current Assets- 

Current Liabilities

 2.95  2.82 4.91%

9 Net Profit Ratio (%) Net Profit Sales 8.57% 8.58% -0.10%

10 Return on Capital 

Employed (%)

Earning Before 

Interest & Tax (EBIT)

Capital Employed (4) 8.52% 10.70% -20.40%

11 Return on Investment (%) Gain/(loss) on 

investment

Average Investment 

(6)

13.26% 11.06% 19.87%

(1) 	 Average Inventory -: (Opening Inventory+Closing Inventory)/2

(2) 	 Average Trade Receivable -: (Opening Trade Receivable+Closing Trade Receivable)/2

(3) 	 Average Trade Payable -: (Opening Trade Payable+Closing Trade Payable)/2

(4) 	 Capital Employed -: (Equity (incl. other equity-Intangible Assets- Intangible Assets under Development) + Current 

Borrowing + Non Current Borrowing

(5) 	 Average Shareholders equity-: (Opening Equity (incl. other equity) +Closing Equity (incl. other equity))/2

(6) 	 Average Investment -: (Opening investment + Closing investment)/2

Explanation for variances exceeding 25% :

^ Change in primarily on account of repayment of borrowings during the year.

# Increase in Debt service coverage ratio mainly due to lower interest cost on account of repayment of borrowings during 

the year.

* Decrease in Trade payable turnover ratio mainly due to reduction in outstanding trade payables.
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Note 52 -: Other Statutory information
i)	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

ii)	  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities 

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) 	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(b) 	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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iii)	 The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall :

(a)	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

(b)	 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iv)	 The Company has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, 

search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

v)	 There is no transaction or closing balance with Struck off Company u/s 248 of the Companies Act during the year.

vi)	 The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies 

Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

vii)	 The company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or other lender.

Note: 53- Segment information 
The principal business of the Company is of manufacturing and sale of Cement and Cement related products. The Chief 

Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the company evaluates the company’s performance and allocates resources based on 

analysis of the various performance indicators of the company as a single unit including its power generating units. CODM 

have concluded that there is only one operating reportable segment as defined by IND AS 108 “Operating Segments”, i.e. 

Cement and Cement Related Products. Further the Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Star Cement Limited (SCL) 

whose principal business is also manufacturing and sale of Cement and Cement related products. The CODM of the SCL 

have also concluded that there is only one operating reportable segment as defined by IND AS 108 “Operating Segments”, 

i.e. Cement and Cement Related Products at group level.

Note 53A : Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and /or rearranged wherever necessary to conform for current year 

classification. However, such regrouping and /or reclassification has no impact on the equity for the previous financial year.

Note: 54 - Bank quarterly statements for working capital facilities
The Company has filed quarterly statements with the banks in compliance of the sanctioned working capital facilities and the 

differences with the books of accounts are as stated below:

(H in lakhs)

Name of 

the Bank

Quarter ended Particulars Amount 

disclosed as 

per quarterly 

return/

statements *

Amount as 

per books of 

account*

Differences Reason for variance

SBI

 March'24 

Trade Receivable  11,165.46  9,696.54  1,468.92 The differences are 

because the statements 

filed with the lenders 

are based on financial 

statements prepared on a 

provisional basis and also 

due to audit/ accounting 

adjustment entries carried 

out subsequently along 

with certain debtors, 

inter-company(group) 

balances were not 

considered by the Banks

Inventory  17,062.77  17,697.87  (635.10)

Trade Payable  3,685.27  5,294.75  (1,609.48)

 December'23 

Trade Receivable  12,776.21  12,390.53  385.68 

Inventory  19,489.77  19,538.75  (48.98)

Trade Payable  5,055.28  6,062.39  (1,007.11)

 September'23 

Trade Receivable  14,226.93  14,228.39  (1.46)

Inventory  17,421.75  17,421.75  (0.00)

Trade Payable  2,876.43  5,959.17  (3,082.74)

June'23

Trade Receivable  11,526.99  12,958.74  (1,431.75)

Inventory  16,230.07  17,032.03  (801.96)

Trade Payable  3,408.71  6,220.01  (2,811.30)
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Note 55 : 
The Company has been using accounting software ERP SAP S4HANA for maintaining its books of account which has a 

feature of recording audit trail (change log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 

except Audit trail feature is not enabled for certain data changes to the data for users with certain access rights to a third party 

software. 

Note 56: 
These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on May 22, 2024 for issue to the 

shareholders of the Company for the adoption.

(H in lakhs)

Name of 

the Bank

Quarter ended Particulars Amount 

disclosed as 

per quarterly 

return/

statements *

Amount as 

per books of 

account*

Differences Reason for variance

 March'23 

Trade Receivable  2,439.51  5,972.17  (3,532.65)

Inventory  18,872.16  19,224.98  (352.82)

Trade Payable  2,118.96  5,480.42  (3,361.46)

 December'22 

Trade Receivable  2,088.70  2,599.52  (510.81)

Inventory  17,039.77  17,425.32  (385.54)

Trade Payable  10,657.82  12,165.90  (1,508.08)

 September'22 

Trade Receivable  6,008.15  7,746.09  (1,737.94)

Inventory  7,962.36  8,287.67  (325.31)

Trade Payable  3,850.10  7,453.58  (3,603.48)

June'22

Trade Receivable  9,976.23  11,203.76  (1,227.52)

Inventory  6,140.91  5,612.46  528.46 

Trade Payable  4,159.29  3,879.52  279.77 

*Working capital limits had been obtained only by Star Cement Meghalaya Limited (‘the company’) and not by MPL, MTEPL and NHHL (refer 

note 49). Thus, above disclosure has been made on the basis of figures of the company without considering the numbers of MPL, MTEPL 

and NHHL.
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